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QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS

(Sec Part I)

9-27 A.M.

LEAVE OF ABSENCE

Mr. Deputy-Speaker: I have to in­
form hon. Members that Shri Mu'chaki 
Kosa is suffering from acute malaria 
and neuritis. He cannot at present 
even put his thumb print to a letter. 
At his request, the Deputy Commisr- 
sioncr of Bastar district has sent an 
application on his behalf for leave of 
absence for the current session of the 
House.

Is it the pleasure of the House that 
leave be granted?

Hor, Members: Yes.

Leave wiis granted.

PAPERS LAID ON THE TABLE

Statem ent show ing  action taken  by 
G overnment on assurances etc.

Hi« Piu4f«iii«utary Secretary to tfie 
Mliiister oi BaUways aad TnaapoH 
(fflirt ShahMAwai Khaii): Sir, on be­
half of Shri Satya Narayan Sinha, I
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beg to lay on the Table the following 
statements showing the action taken 
by G overnm ^t on various assurances, 
promises and undertakings given 
during the various sessions shown 
against each:

(1) Consolidated ... Fourth Session  ̂ 1953 
Statement. of the House of the

People.
[See Appendix VIII, annexure No. 6]

(2) Supplement- ... Third Session, 1953 of 
ary State- the House of the 
ment No. V. People.

[See Appendix VIII, anneuxre No. 7]
(3) Supplemen- .. 

tary State­
ment No. VI.

Second Session^ 1952 
of the House of the 
People.

Appendix VIII» annexure No. 8]
(4) Supplement- ... First Session, 1952 of 

ary State- the House of the 
mem No. VII. People.

[See Appendix VIII, annexure No. 9]
(5) Supplement- .. Fifth Session, 1952 of 

ary State- the Provisional Parlia­
ment No. IV. ment.

[See Appendix VIII, annexure No. 10]
(6) Supplement- ... Third Session (Second 

aiy State- Part), 1951 of the Pro- 
ment No. IX. visional Parliament.

[See Appendix VIII, annexure No. 11]

DETENTION AND DEATH OF DR.
S. P. MOOKERJElfi

Mr. Deputy-Speaker: The House
will now take up the discussion on 
the citcumstances leading to the de­
tention of Dr. Syama Prasad Mooker- 
Jee and his death in detention.

ghri N. G. Clwtteijee: (Hooghljr): 
Skr........
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Mr. Deputy-Spcaker: 1 will fix a*
time-limit. There are only a lew 
speakers. Let me see.

Shri N. C. Chatterjee: Sir, this ses­
sion ol Parliament began with a re­
ference to the tragic death of Dr. 
Syama Prasad Mookerjee. That tragic 
death robbed this House certainly 
of one of the ablest Parliamentarians 
India has ever produced. Certainly 
this country still mourns the loss of 
one of the greatest sons of mother 
India who rendered conspicuous ser­
vices both to Bengal and to India in 
moments of great crises, specially dur­
ing the Bengal famine, during the dark 
days of relentless represslion which fol­
lowed the August 1942 movement and 
also the terrible days which we in 
Bengal had to go through under the 
League administration.

Millions of his admiring country­
men were literally stunned to hear the 
unexpected news of his death at Srir- 
nagar. In the city of his birth, there 
was a spontaneous outburst of public 
feeling and the demonstrations of 
popular homage and tribute were 
really remarkable. The city of Cal* 
cutta has never witnessed anything 
like that since the passing away of 
the great patriot Deshbandhu C. R. 
Das. Far, far away from his family, 
far far away from his friends, in the 
chilling atmosphere of a State hospi­
tal at Srinagar, died Dr. Syama Pra­
sad Mookerjee. But, he died a hero’s 
death, a true martyr to the cause 
which he held sacred, the cause of 
India’s unity and integrity which he 
cherished all his life and for which 
he sacrificed his life.

But, what adds poignancy to the 
tragic death is that one of the greatest 
sons of India was robbed of his free­
dom, not by a Government run by 
alien usurpers, but by a Government 
which was manned by the children 
of the soil. The greatest tragedy is 
that he was kept as a prisoner behind 
the prison bars, without any trial 
and he was treated like an ordinary 
criminal in spite of his serious illness 
because he loved his motherland deep­
ly and passionately and because he

sought in his own way to maintain, 
the unity of the country, and, if possi­
ble, to intensify and strengthen that 
unity and solidarity.

I am appealing today to all sections 
of this House to respond to the de­
mand for a public enquiry. Dr. Jaya- 
kar, you know. Sir, was a Judge of 
the Federal Court of India and later 
on he was a Member of the Judicial 
Committee of the Privy Council in 
England. On the day of his death,' 
23rd June, Dr. Jayakar issued a state­
ment from Poona. I am reading from 
a book published by Dr. Syama Pra­
sad Mookerjee’s Iprother entitled; 
Syama Prasad Mookerjee: His Death 
in Detention A case for Enquiry. I 
find the hon. Home Minister has got 
the same book in his hand. I refer 
to page 53. Dr. Jayakar said:

*To die in prison-house locked 
there by his country’s Swadeshi 
Government, by persons with 
whom he shared power as a col­
league only a few days ago. is a 
fitting termination of a warring 
life. Let us hope that this inci­
dent will make the Government 
of India realise, in their self-com­
placent enjoyment of the chits of 
American visitors, the deep enor­
mity of their bahaviour which 
ignored all the canons of fairness 
and Justice accepted by civilised 
Governments.”

I hope the Government of India ap­
preciates the enormity of its behaviour 
and it will respond readily to this 
demand not merely put forward by 
the revered mother of Dr. Syama Pra­
sad Mookerjee, but by all sections, 
by all parties, by all groups of people 
in Bengal and by millions of people 
outside Bengal.

It is not merely tragic but it is 
also mysterious, how the last chapter 
of Dr. Syama Prasad Mookerjee’s life 
was written in dentention, in the 
sub-jail, and in the hospital at Kash­
mir. The public feel that both Sri­
nagar and New Delhi had badly bung­
led the situation.
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The then Prime Minister of the
State of Kashmir, Sheikh Abdullah, 
had issued a statement shortly after 
Dr. Syama Prasad Mookerjee’s death, 
that is, on the 26th June. You will 
find that In page 36 of this book. 
You will find that statement printed 
there. Sheikh Abdullah categorical­
ly stated why Dr. Syama Prasad was 
arrested. It says:

“Referring to the circumstances 
under which the Jan Sangh leader 
was detained and arrested in the 
State for defying the permit 
system, Sheikh Abdullah said 
even though the permit system 
means some difficulty for us, we 
have to submit to the needs of the 
national security of India as de­
fence of the country is paramount 
for every Indian.**

Sheikh Abdullah was then thinking 
that he was an Indian and that Dr. 
Syama Prasad was being detained 
for the defence of India and foe the 
security of India.

Now, Sir, this is a very peculiar 
position, who introduced the permit 
system? When was it^ introduced? 
Whose responsibility was the permit 
system? The permit system was in­
troduced by the Government of India, 
not by the Government of Sheikh 
Abdullah. Up to the point of time 
when Dr. Mookerjee was arrested 
there was no law in the State of 
Jammu and Kashmir making it an 
offence for any one to enter that State 
without any permit. After Dr. 
Mookerjee’s arrest, the Jammu and 
Kashmir Government passed an Or­
dinance through the Sadr-e-Riyasat 
making this an offence. Therefore, 
tip to the point of his arrest there 
was no law in that State of Jammu 
and Kashmir which required any one 
to produce a permit. This has been 
clearly recorded by Dr. Mookerjee in 
his own hand writing, in some notes 
made by him in connection with an 
application made before the Kashmir 
High Court. That note is printed in 
the booklet at page 70, paragraph 2, 
Dr. Mookerjee hag what
happened:

“On 11th May Jammu and Kash­
mir Government passed an Ordi­
nance through the Sadr-i-Riyasat 
making it an offence for anyone 
to enter the State without a 
STATE permit. My arrest was 
not under this Ordinance.”

When a Member of this Parliament, 
Mr. V. G. Despande, wanted to visit 
.Kashmir, the Government of India 
refused to issue a Kashmir entry per­
mit to him in the month of April 
this very year. Mr. Despande imme­
diately wrote to the Prime Minister 
of India on the 11th of April. On 
the 12th of April, the Prime Minister 
of India promptly replied to Mr. 
Despande’s letter. I am reading out 
a portion of that letter of the Prime 
Minister. I have got the orginal letter 
with me.

“The system of issuing permits 
for entry into the Jammu and 
Kashmir State was introduced 
some years ago by the Govern­
ment of India, and it is the res­
ponsibility of the Government of 
India exercised by the Defence 
Ministry of India.”

Therefore, Sir, according to the
Prime Minister, the permit system 
was introduced by the Government of 
India. The responsibility was that of 
the Government of India. The res­
ponsibility was to be exercised by the 
Defence Ministry of India. What 
right had Sheikh Abdullah to a r­
rest Dr. Mookerjee? What right had 
Sheikh Abdullah's Government to 
arrest Dr. Mookerjee for the infringe­
ment of the so-called permit system?

The facts prove that on the 8th of 
May, Dr. Mookerjee, before proceed­
ing to Jammu and Kashmir had tel- 
graphically informed Sheikh Abdullah 
of his proposed visit and of the pur­
pose of his visit. That is in an affi­
davit which Dr. Mookerjee himself 
affirmed, to which no objection was 
taken by the Kashmir State Govern­
ment which was represented in the 
High Court. I am reading. Sir, pages 
74 and 75—at page 74 is the petition 
which was filed In the High Court
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[Shri N. C. Chatterjee] 
the petitioner being Dr. Mookerjee; 
in page 75 you will find the affidavit 
of Dr. Mookerjee verifying the facts 
as being true to his knowledge.

In paragraph 2 he says:

“Before coming to Jammu and 
Kashmir 1 had intimated to Shri 
Sheikh Mohammed Abdullah by a 
telegram of my proposed visit and 
of the puipose of my visit, viz., 
to study conditions myself and 
to explore the possibilities of 
creating conditions leading to 
peaceful settlement and to see if 
possible Hon’ble Shri Sheikh 
Mohammed Abdullah. I had re­
ceived a reply thereto.”

That reply is set out at paige 75 of 
the booklet . Sheikh Abdullah wrote:

“Thanks your telegram—I am 
afraid your proposed visit to the 
State at the present juncture in­
opportune and will not serve any 
useful purpose.”

Dr. Mookerjee has left some notes 
which were kept in a portfolio. His 
diary and the biography of his father. 
Sir Ashutosh Mookerjee, which he
was writing in jail have been unfor­
tunately withheld. Fortunately the 
papers in that portfolio had not been 
removed because the key of that 
portfolio was attached to his sacred 
thread. That key was discovered
when his dead body "was placed on
the bier at his Calcutta residence.
When the portfolio was opened, in 
one of the notes found therein there 
was a charge clearly made by him in 
his own handwriting: That, Sir, is 
printed in this booklet at page 71. 
item (2). This is the charge made 
by Dr. Mookerjee;

“Conspiracy between Govern­
ment of India and Jammu and 
Kashmir Government—the circunv 
stanees under which my entry 
was facilitated by Indian officials.*'

This is a serious charge to make. 
iHlt there seems to be good justiftca- 
flon for Dr. Mookerjee making that

charge in writing. He has not re­
corded here something untrue, some­
thing fantastic, something unfounded. 
Not only the Government of India 
did n6i arrest him for the infringe­
ment ' of the so-called permit system 
which that Government introduced 
—it did not detain him for the al­
leged violation of the permit system— 
but the District Magistrate of Gur- 
daspur actually escorted Dr. Mooker­
jee and his party r i ^ t  up to the 
border, and it seems that he was 
pushed into the State of Jammu and 
Kashmir as a result of some under­
standing or some arrangement between 
the Government of India and the 
Government of Jammu and Kashmir 
State.

I have got here a statement issued 
by Mr. Gurudutt Vaid, a responsible 
citizen of Delhi, who has clearly 
stated the circumstances, and has 
stated that the District Magistrate of 
Gurdaspur and his officials were pre­
sent at Madhopur check-post and ac­
tually wished Dr. Mookerjee goodrbye. 
I am reading from page 36. Mr. Guru­
dutt Vaid says:

“At about 12 o* clock...

—12 o’ clock. Sir, of the day when he 
was arrested—

“ ...a message came from the 
District Magistrate, Gurdaspur, 
to the place where we have been 
staying to the effect that he want­
ed to see Dr. Mookerjee. So he 
came at about I p .m . He inform­
ed Dr. Mookerjee that he had re­
ceived a message ftom his Gov­
ernment to allow him and his 
party to proceed to Jammu, in 
spite of the fact that Dr. Mooker­
jee and his party had no permit. 
He offered help to procure con­
veyance etc., to us to go to Jammu.
In fact, one of his subordinate 
officers took some of the per­
sons of the party in his Jeep up 
to Madhopur check post. At 
Madhopur check post the District 
Magistrate and all hie officers were
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standing and the District Magis­
trate wished us good journey.**

But, Sir, there was one difficulty. 
The driver ol the jeep was not a 
Member of Parliament, nor a big 
man. He got funky, and be got ner­
vous. Mr. Vaid has stated— am 
reading his statement:

“The driver of our jeep had at 
that time complained that he had 
no permit to enter Jammu State. 
We demanded a permit from the 
District Magistrate. He stated 
that we should proceed and the 
permit would follow us.**
Sir, this clearly shows that there 

was some complicity, combination, co­
ordination, conspiracy between the 
Government of India and the Gov»- 
ernment of Jammu and Kashmir. 
That was why he was trapped into 
Jammu and Kashmir. It may have 
been a perfectly good strategy to push 
him out of the jurisdiction of the 
Supreme Court of India in order to 
avoid a repetition of another legal 
discomflture as had 'taken place on 
the occasion when the Supreme Court 
ordered Syama Prasad’s release and 
my release. But that ' makes this 
Government of India eaually respon­
sible and they cannot shirk, nor shed, 
their responsibility for what had hap­
pened to Dr. Syama Prasad Mooker- 
iee, after that day when he was in 
detention in that State. It is signi­
ficant that Sheikh Abdullah made an­
other statement immediately after 
Syama Prasad*i death. On the 26̂  
June, in a public statement at Srina­
gar, the Sheikh Sahib said that he 
was going to send Dr. Mookerjee back 
to Delhi immediately on the return 
of Pandit Nehru to India. If it was 
merely the concern of the Jammu and 
Kashmir Government, what was the 
point of the Prime Minister of that 
Government stating that he was prac­
tically acting as the Jailor or custo­
dian of Dr. Syama Prasad Mookerjee 
for the Government of India. Ob­
viously, Sir, the two Governments 
were acting in consiiltation and com- 
binatior), if not in conspiracy or com­
plicity.

You remember, Sir, a criminal case 
lor alleged violation of a |;>rohibita];y 
order was pending against Dr. Syama 
Prasad Mookerjee in the Delhi Court 
from the month of April. When the 
Delhi trying Magistrate wrote to the 
Chief Secretary of the Government 
of Jammu and Kashmir—send down 
Dr. Mookerjee because I have got to 
record his statement under section 
342 of the Criminal Procedure Code 
—the Kashmir Government refused to 
accede to the request of the Magis­
trate of Delhi. The Government of 
Delhi who were prosecuting Dr. Syama 
Prasad Mookerjee along with another 
Member of Parliament in that case 
managed somehow to delay the hear 
ing on the ground of the alleged ill­
ness of a Sub-Inspector of Police. 
That Sub-Inspector was trying to 
dodge the court from day to day and 
the case was being adjourned. He 
was the last witness in the case. The 
Magistrate was not satisfied. He want 
down to the Sub-Inspector*s quarter 
and he found that he was almost all 
right. Therefore, he ordered that
the Civil Surgeon should examine him
and report. On the 2nd June, the 
Magistrate passed orders in writing 
that he had received intimation from 
the Chief Secretary of the Jammu
and Kashmir Government stating 
that Dr. Syama Prasad Mookerjee was 
not likely to be produced in his 
court in the near future. Can you 
e \^ r believe. Sir, that any Part B 
state could venture to deal with a
Magistrate functioning in India in
th'is fashion, trying Dr. Syama Prgsad 
Mookerjee? Could it act in this con­
tumacious manner unless there was 
connivance with the top men at Delhi, 
unless they had realised that that was 
the wish of the New Delhi lords? 
Unless there was some understanding 
between the ruling men of the ^ o  
Governments, how could any Gov­
ernment of any State or any Part B 
State ever have the courage to be­
have in this fashion? In a letter 
which Syama Prasad wrote on the 
12th May, he put in a significant 
sentence: *'I was arrested yesterday, 
though the Government of India did
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[Shri N. C. Chatterjee]
not prevent my coming here without 
any permit. Under peculiar circum­
stances, my stay in Srinagar has
come to be arranged”. Sir, he knew 
that his letters were being censored 
and there was no chance of anything 
escaping the eagle eyes of Sheikh Ab­
dullah, because he was taking a per­
sonal interest in all his corresponden­
ce. But, Sir, he put it in a very mild 
way; ‘My stay in Srinagar has come 
to be arranged'. The question is:
was anything else arranged? That is 
the public suspicion.

I accuse this Government of India, 
I charge this Government that Dr. 
Syama Prasad Mookerjee was ille­
gally detained as a result of their
abetment or conspiracy. As a citizen 
of India, as a Member of this Parlia­
ment, Syama Prasad had his funda­
mental right to go throughout the 
length and breadth of the territory of 
India and to find out conditions in 
any part of the territory of this coun­
try. Syama Prasad was deliberately 
deprived of that right and the orders 
of the 10th and 11th May really set 
out false grounds and, I am sorry to 
say, manufactured grounds. The 
orders. Sir, are printed in pages 76 
and 77. The first order—page 7 6 -  
says: “You shall not enter the 
Jammu and Kashmir State”. The 
second order says: “Whereas you 
have acted, you are acting and you 
are about to act in a manner preju­
dicial to public safety and peace, it 
is necessary to make the following 
order: Therefore, I, Inspector Gener­
al of Police, order that he be arrest­
ed”—Syama Prasad be arrested—“and 
removed under custody to Central 
Jail at Srinagar”.

Sir, this is a funny order and you 
w*U be also amazed to know that in 
his affidavit Dr. Mookerjee had stated 
that the second order was served on 
him only one minute after the first 
order—practically both of them were 
served together. It clearly is a false 
statement in the second order that he 
had acted In any manner prejudicial 
to the public safety and peace. He

was given absolutely no chance to 
comply with the first order.

I know, Sir, that Dr. Mookerjee 
was expecting that he would be a r­
rested by our Government and would 
be sent back to Delhi. Therefore, 
he had arranged with a distinguished 
foreign visitor that he would meet 
him on the 13th May in Delhi. But 
destiny decided otherwise.

I am charging that the Kashmir 
Government had been treating Dr. 
Syama Prasad Mookerjee as if he was 
a convicted fellow. The Health Minis­
ter's statement issued on the 1st of 
July fails to bring to light certain 
inconvenient facts. That statement 
does not disclose one important fact 
that after the arrest of Dr. Mookerjee 
on the 11th of May he was taken in 
a jeep car and in spite of his pro­
test, he was forced to travel till 2 a .m . 
in the morning through mountainous 
regions.

Shri Purushottamdas Tandon, an 
hon. Member of this House did not 
share Syama Prasad Mookerjee’s poli^ 
tics. But, Sir, he said something 
shortly after Syama Prasad's death. 
That is printed at page 54. Shri 
Tandon said that he felt that Dr. 
Mookerjee's treatment “was not pro­
perly done”. Shri Tandon hoped the 
Government of India would explain 
the whole situation after due enquiry 
—“after due enquiry”. My griev­
ance is, Bengal's grievance is. the 
public grievance Is, the revered 
mother’s grievance is—and millions of 
people feel this grievance—that this 
Government of India has not explain­
ed the whole situation “after due en­
quiry”. Really, Sir, no enquiry has 
ever been made at all, and that en­
quiry should be made In order to al­
lay public suspicion.

Sir, you know Shri Jaya- 
prakash Narayan did not share 
Syama Prasad Mookerjee’s poli­
tics. But on the 8th July he made a 
statement— Î am reading from that 
statement printed at page 54 of this 
book:
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“I regret deeply that the Prime 
Minister of India, in his reply to 
Shri Atulya Ghosh, reported in 
the Press this morning, has stated 
so categorically that there was no 
negligence shown by the Kash­
mir Government in the case of 
the late Dr. Syama Prasad Mooker­
jee. I cannot say what facts 
have been placed before the 
Prime Minister, but the facts, as 
I know them, lead to an entirely 
different conclusion”.

Then Shri Jay a Prakash Narayan 
further added:

*‘It seems to me that after such 
a national tragedy the least that 
the Indian Government can do is 
to institute a proper and impar­
tial enquiry into the whole affair.
.....Meanwhile it does not seem
proper for the Prime Minister 
to pronounce judgment on such a 
controversial subject and to at­
tempt to whitewash the guilt of 
those who seem to deserve severe 
punishment.”

Sir, in a letter which Shri Jawahar- 
lal Nehru wrote to Shrimati Jogmaya 
Devi, the revered mother of ' Syama 
Prasad, he stated this. I am read­
ing the letter.

“I can only say to you that I 
arrived at the clear and honest 
conclusion that there is no mys­
tery in this. Dr. Mookerjee was 
given every consideration.”

The mother’s prompt reply was on 
the 9th of July.

*lt is a sad commentary on the 
whole situation. Instead of help­
ing to clear up the mystery, your 
attitude deepens it. I demand 
an open enquiry; I do not ask for 
your clear and honest conclusion. 
Your reaction to the whole affair 
is now well-known. The people 
of India and I. the mother, have 
got to be convinced. There is 
a rooted suspicion in the minds 
of many. What is required is

an open, impartial and immediate 
enquiry.

The various points raised in 
my letter remain unanswered. I 
had clearly told you that I had 
positive evidence to prove cer­
tain very relevant and important 
facts. You do not care to know 
or look into them. You say that 
you had enquired ‘from a num­
ber of persons who had occasion 
to know some facts’. It is strange 
that even we the members of his 
family are not regarded as per­
sons who can throw at least 
some light on the matter! And 
yet you call your conclusion to 
be ‘honest’l”

How could the Prime Minister of 
India be satisfied? How could he 
come to the honest conclusion and 
clear conclusion that there was no 
negligence and that Dr. Mookerjee 
was given ever3'’ consideration? From 
whom did he make enquiries? Did 
he send for Mr. Trivedi, M.P. who 
was counsel of Dr. Mookerjee and 
who saw him on the last day? Did 
he send for any of the co-detenus who 
had spent days with him in the sub- 
jail? Did he send for any of the 
other persons?

Dr. Mookerjee’s companion in jail 
has issued a statement in which he 
has pointed out that no medical as­
sistance was available on the spot 
where Dr. Mookerjee was detained 
even when his condition had become 
serious.

Sir, I have not got time to go 
through all these. I will just read 
only one paragraph at page 42. 
Vaid’s statement says:

“It is a matter of regret that 
a precious life was lost in circum­
stances which I feel could admit 
of more efficient handling.

(a) Medical assistance was not 
available on the spot where 
Dr. Mookerjee was detained 
even when his condition oe*- 
came serious.
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(b) No nursing arrangements 

were at all made in the place 
of his detention.

(c) No laboratory tests were 
made so long as he was in the 
sub-jail

(d) None of his fellow detenus 
were permitted to be at his 
bed side when he was remov­
ed to the hospital.

Even after Dr. Mookerjee ex­
pressed the desire that his fellOT̂  ̂
prisoners should be brought to 
the hospital no information was 
sent to them till he passed away.”

All this shows great cruelty, almost 
inhuman cruelty. When he realised 
that the end was coming he was shout­
ing and appealing that his co-detenus 
should be brought to the hospital, 
but no one was allowed to visit him.

I am reading again from the book.

''(e) Nc intimation was at all 
sent by the Kashmir authorities 
to Justice Mookerjee, his mother 
and his other relatives nor was 
any attempt made to have the 
service of an independent compe­
tent medical practitioner.”

It is a very significant charge. Sir.
That charge itself shows that there 
Is good prima jade  case for an en* 
quiry.

“ (g) In spite of Dr. Mookerjee*s 
protest based on competent medi­
cal advice during his previous 
illness at Calcutta streptomycin 
was administered to him with­
out previous pathological exami­
nation or without consulting his 
Calcutta doctors who were availar 
ble on the phone.”

These charges, Sir, have been sole­
mnly made; they stand and I am re­
peating these charges on the floor of 
this House.
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10 A.M.
Lot of propaganda has been and 

is being made that Dr. Mookerjee 
himself sent telegrams to the mem­
bers of his family on the 22nd of 
June. Really it was one telegram 
addressed to his brother Mr. Justice 
Mookerjee and copies were sent to 
others. Lot of propaganda is being 
made that Mr. Trivedi» M.P., who was 
the counsel of Dr. Mookerjee, had 
long interview with him on that day. 
even on the evening of that fateful 
day. As a matter of fact. Sir. in 
some countries this is one of the me­
thods of liquidation of political op­
ponents. Dr. Mookerjee was made to 
undergo exertions which ought to 
have been avoided. Read the state­
ment of Mr. Trivedi himself. Mr. 
Trivedi in his signed statements ad­
mits that the gravity of the illness 
had not been realised. I am just 
reading one paragraph on page 48 of 
Mr. Trivedi’s statement.

Mr. Deputy-Speaker: I am calling 
upon him to speak. I am allowing 
him an opportunity to speak.

Shri N. C. Chatterjee: I will read
only one portion of his statement:

“ (1 ) Dr. Mookerjee was not ad­
vised complete rest after the 
the first attack on 22nd 
morning, 4 o’ clock;

(2) He was not immediately re­
moved to the hospital while 
7 valuable hours were lost;

(3) He was not carried to the 
hospital in an ambulance but 
was carried in a small taxi 
and in imcomfortable posi­
tion;

(4) The immediate medical re­
lief was not made available 
even after entry into the hos­
pital;

(5) The gravity of the illness was 
not noticed;

(6) The Superintendent, Jail, was 
asked to remove Dr. Mooker-
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jee to the hospital early 
morniiig but he wasted time 
and actually sat chatting with 
Mr. Raina for nearly one and 
a quarter oi an hour/’̂

Then he says something about me­
dicine.

“ (8) When the Doctors knew that 
ne had heart trouble they 
failed in doing their duty to 
issue a bulletin immediately 
and to study the case with 
ihe greatest possible care 
specially when it appeared to 
be a case of heart trouble:

(0) All causes of mental pain 
ought to have been removed, 
the posting of police guards 
at his room and not allowing 
him the conigenial company 
of one of those who knew him 
was also bad;’*

Then, Sir, he says something about 
the treatment. Lastly, he says:

“ (11) The diagnosing doctor 
left it in the hcTnds of his junior 
to carry out his behest without 
reference to Dr. Mookerjee and 
notwithstanding his ' suggestions 
to give him smaller doses of 
streptomycin and avoiding the 
use of sedatives.*’

Sir, these are serious charges which 
Mr. Trivedi has made.

Apart from this, very eminent 
doctors have pointed out, after the 
Government communique was issued 
and after the medical report of the 
illness of Dr. Syama Prasad Mooker­
jee was published by the Kashmir 
Government, that the treatment of 
Dr. Mookerjee was faulty in many res­
pects. Dr. Khare has clearly stated 
it. My friends are amused. I pity 
them. Dr. Khare has clearly stated 
that the nation-wide demand for a 
deep probe into the affair was fully 
justified.

Dr. Naliniranjan Sen-Gupta*s report 
Is very detailed and it is printed at
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page 51. He is iim biggest doctor 
of Calcutta next to Dr. B. C. Roy and 
now that he is the Chief Minister* 
he is the leading Doctor. Dr. Amal 
Kumar Roy-Chowdhury, M.D. is one 
of the best physicians known all over 
Bengal, whose opinion is on page 52:

“It seemed there must have 
been bungling somewhere and that 
proper attention had not been 
paid to the case.*'

Then, Sir, there is one eminent 
doctor, Dr. T, N. Baneriee, who was 
the Principal of the Medical College, 
Patna and he has also said that there 
was no proper treatment.

The most cruel phenomenon in this 
entire tragic drama was that no in­
timation was ever sent by the Kash­
mir authorities to Mr. Justice Mooker­
jee his brother, or to his mother or 
his relatives, not even to Dr. B. C. 
Roy. Certainly they knew that Dr. 
Roy was his physician and he was 
the Chief Minister of Bengal. They 
could contact him within two minutes 
on the phone. After his death he was 
informed in a short time, but not so 
long as he was ill.

Dr. Mookerjee was a strong critic 
of Pandit Nehru’s Government, in 
particular of his Kashmir policy as 
well as his policy towards Pakistan 
and the refugees. The ablest Parlia­
mentarian in India, however, has 
languished and capitulated to death 
in prison. The gfoatest menace to 
democracy is the feeling that a poli­
tical opponent of the Government 
can be liquidated in prison when he 
is held in detention without trial. 
That suspicion should be removed. 
That can be removed only by an 
honest inquiry. I think it is in the 
Interest of the Government that they 
should immediately respond to this 
demand. This is a demand which 
the mother of Dr. Mookerjee has made 
in very moving terms: She says:

had long dedicated my son 
for selfless service to the coun­
try, and my son sacrificed his Ufe 
for the cause of the Motherland.
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He had the courage of conviction 
to oppose the Party in power. 
Am I to believe that in Free India 
to lead an Opposition is a crime? 
And yet my son suffered detenr 
tion till death, as a condemned 
criminal with this difference that 
the criminal gets a trial, but tor 
him there was not even a show 
of trial. It seems, malice and 
jealousy of persons in Authority, 
armed by the people with unlimi­
ted powers, pursued him per­
sistently, and a huge machine of 
organised injustice was set again­
st him. But my son’s courage 
proved greater than their malice, 
stronger than any torment their 
cruelty could device. And he 
shall ever live even in death, for 
while thinking of him I cannot 
but think of those martyrs who 
had died on the wheel, in the 
flames, under the sword, riddled 
with arrows, torn and devoured 
by wild beasts”.

I honestly feel that it is desirable 
in the interests of the two govern­
ments concerned, if they have no 
guilty conscience, if they have not got 
anything to hide from the public, 
nothing to keep back from the pub­
lic, that they should immediately res­
pond to this demand. It is a tragedy 
too deep for tears that a man ol 
his position was held under a “law­
less law” which is a disgrace to any 
civilised country and specially to a 
country which proclaims itself a Re­
public. It is an Act much worse than 
the Preventive Detention Act, which 
stands to the discredit of my hon. 
friend under whom we have been en­
joying for some months the taste of 
that statute. The least that he can 
do is to institute an impartial Com­
mission of Enquiry and that has been 
demanded by the revered mother of 
Dr. Mookerjee and that demand has 
been endorsed and supported by milr 
lions of his countrymen throughout 
India. For under our Preventive De­
tention Act there are some grounds

furnished, some charges given, but 
under that wonderful Kashmir Gov­
ernment’s Preventive Detention Act 
there are no grounds, no charges, no 
formulation, no knowledge of exactly 
what has happened.

He had fundamental political diffe­
rences with New Delhi and with 
Kashmir. But he was no criminal 
who deserved no consideration even 
in his illness. Even under the Bri­
tish Imperial regime a leader of his 
status could not have been kept be­
hind the bars when he was ill. He 
would have been restored to liberty 
in time. Kashmir Government’s as­
sociation with this grievous tragedy 
would not have been there, if he had 
been released before he was removed 
from the sub-jail. This lamentable 
lapse on the part of the Kashmir Gov­
ernment would need a lot of explain­
ing and New Delhi cannot escape 
from its share of the blame. It should 
have been more alert than it actual­
ly had been. Dr. Mookerjee epito­
mised the Opposition in the Parlia­
ment and that is why the Govern­
ment should have been more careful, 
more vigilant and more tactful. I 
ask when was the Government of 
India informed of his serious illness? 
What action had the Government 
taken? Did they make any offer to 
send any Doctor to Srinagar? It is 
in the interests of the two Govern­
ments that they should accede to this 
demand.

Nemesis has overtaken Sheikh Ab­
dullah. The Divine retribution has 
been very swift. The detainer is now 
himself a detenu. That is how Divi­
nity shapes the destiny of men and 
things. Yet, it is in the interests of 
the two Governments to accede to 
the demand for public enquiry and 
to probe into the circumstances which 
led to his death and explain to the 
country the whole position.

Shri U. M. Triyedi (Chittor): I have 
not the command of the language 
which Mr. Chatterjee has and I may 
not be able to add flowery words to
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the demand that Mr. Chatterjee ha3 
made for an independent inquiry into 
the death of Dr. Syama Prasad Mookor- 
jee, a giant in stature, a giant in mind 
and a giant in spirit.

It was my unfortunate mission on a 
demand made by him that I had to fio 
and move the court about his release. 
On the day 1 wanted to go I made un 
application to the Defence Ministry in 
the ordinary course to allow me to 
proceed to take up the onerous task 
which was cast upon me. But, I may 
inform the House, that after nearly 
nine days I was informed by the Du- 
fence Ministry that I must apply to 
the Home Minister of Madhya Bharat, 
to which place I belong, for a permit 
to proceed to Kashmir. I immediate­
ly sent a telegram to Mr. Tyafiji, our 
hon. Defence Minister, to just step in 
and see if I could get a permit which 
is generally granted within ten minu­
tes to an ordinary citizen. Thanks to 
Mr. Tyagi, the necessary permit was 
issued to me but before that could 
reach me, I had already reached 
Pathankot in response to a telegram 
which I had received frotn Delhi.

There also a good deal of obstruc­
tion took place and ultimately 1 got a 
permit to proceed there. I give this 
with a view to indicate how and in 
what callous manner the Government 
of India was behaving. I do not talk 
of the hon. Ministers who personally 
sit here and had occasion of watching 
the whole affair but I am talking of 
the general policy that was adopted. 
Even today I am waiting for that per­
mit from the Home Minister of 
Madhya Bharat. Dr. Mookerjee is 
dead in Kashmir and the Minister is 
still sending me that permit to pro­
ceed to Kashmir.

However, I proceeded and when I 
reached Kashmir I was first told one 
thing: that I would not be allowed to 
see Dr. Syama Prasad Mookerjee «s 
his advocate without the District 
Magistrate being present and that I 
must talk with him in a language 
which the District Magistrate would 
understand. Such a thing was im­
possible for me as a lawyer and I had
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to refuse to take Instructions. Now 
comes the whole crux of the thing. I 
want to describe to you those facts 
which I never meant for publication in 
my statement which I had given. It 
was only a statement for Justice 
Mookerjee to read. I have never had 
a desire for its publication. I have 
certain facts which might affect some 
people and if disclosed now might ruin 
their careers. I must tell you and 
disclose to this House what makes me 
think that there was something Ashy 
in the death of Dr. Mookerjee.

When I was refused this permission 
I thought of returning the following 
morning but then I was asked by some 
gentleman that I must make one more 
approach to Sheikh Abdullah and ask 
his special permission and tell him re­
asonably to accede to my request. I 
did try. I wrote to the Chief Secre­
tary Mr. Kidwai about it and he pro­
mised me that perhaps the order will 
be rescinded and I will be allowed to 
see him.

On the 13th July at about 11-30—to 
be correct. I received a message that 
Sheikh Abdullah would not allow me 
to see him without the presence of the 
District Magistrate Shri Ghulam Nabi. 
As a lawyer, so far as I was concerned, 
it was my duty to come to Delhi and 
make an application in the Supreme 
Court and so I was thinking to leave 
for Pathankot by aeroplane on the 
following day when at about 10 o'clock, 
—at 10 P.M. when all the six guards 
who were placed at my doors, when all 
those six detectives who were placed 
there to watch my movements had 
withdrawn—they had been there upto
9 P.M.—at 10 o'clock, one man, a 
Kashmiri pandit in a yellow pugree, 
came and fell at my feet and told roe 
“you have made up your mind to go 
away? We here, the whole of Srina­
gar public, demand that you should 
not go away. Do everything in your 
power to take away Dr. Mookerjee 
from here. He will be kHled.” These 
were the very words that that man 
uttered. It was this thing, Sir. which 
kept me away from going the very 
next day. On the 15th. I made an 
application, through a friend ot
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Dr. Mookerjee, to the High Court lor re­
leasing Dr. Mookerjee. In that ap­
plication of mine I had to disclose the 
fact, of my not securing an interview 
and when this application came up for 
hearing on the 17th. as soon as I rea­
ched the High Court the very first pre­
liminary point that was taken up was 
that I was not allowed to interview 
Dr. Mookerjee. and therefore, that 
point was decided first. The hon. High 
Court ordered that I must be allowed 
to interview him within 48 hours. It 
was my idea—when I approached the 
Deputy Registrar—that I would be able 
to get the interview on the 17th. But 
to my surprise, I was immediately in­
formed by the Government that Sheikh 
Abdullah was not going to sanction 
that. I was feeling very awkward.
Who was Sheikh Abdullah after all, 
after the orders of the High Court?
However, I was told—only at 11 o’clock 
at night— t̂hat Sheikh Abdullah had 
sanctioned the interview. In between 
I had come to know from the various 
Ministers—I met the Jail Minister in 
particular and the Home Minister also 
—and I was told that in this matter of 
Dr. Mookerjee’s detention every action 
was taken by Sheikh Abdullah and 
Sheikh Abdullah alone. Every cen­
sorship of his letters was done by him.
The Jail Superintendent was not trus­
ted. The District Magistrate was not 
trusted. Unless these two oflflcers 
were to go there together, nothing 
could be done. Even any change in 
the food arrangements if it had to be 
made, could only be done by Sheikh 
Abdullah. That was another aspect 
of it.

A very pertinent fact to which I wish 
to draw the attention of the House now 
is this: When I got the interview on
the 18th, I talked with Dr. Mookerjee 
for nearly three hours. The case 
came up for hearing on the 19th. It 
is just an ordinary prayer for habeas 
corpus applications-^-that the detenu 
shall be produced before the court. And 
for this particular thing, the hon. Chief 
Justioe had asked the Deputy Regis­
trar of that court to convey to me not 
to press this request of mine because
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the life of Dr. Mookerjee would then 
be in danger, and there was a chance 
of some riots being manipulated by 
Sheikh Abdullah and Dr. Mookerjee 
might be killed. That was another 
shock to me. This was the general 
opinion—I am not telling you this on 
my own, I do not know the facts my­
self, but I am just narrating to you 
what opinion I have come across and 
what I have heard from the people. If 
this was the general impression of the 
people who were living in Srinagar 
you can just imagine what can be the 
views of those who are so far away. 
Whenever people die in such circum­
stances those who are d ^ r  and near 
to him always think of so many things 
and it is but natural for those of us 
who are here and w^o loved Dr, 
Mookerjee to feel in the way in which 
we have felt—that something fishy 
did take place in the death of Dr. 
Mookerjee.

Let me proceed a little further, Sir.
I do not want to talk of the other 
things which I have narrated in my 
statement. I will now come to the 
fatal day—22nd. On the 22nd morn­
ing when I went to Dr. Mookerjee, I 
found him reclining and he was quite 
jolly; he was cheerful also as was his 
wont. And so, when he was in a 
reclining position, we started talking 
about his case. He mentioned to me 
that he would have passed away that 
morning. These are his actual word^: 
Mere bhai, panch baje to chale jata 
tha. I was surprised. At that time 
there was nobody by my side, and 
then Dr. Mookerjee narrated to me 
what had happened to him. When I 
saw him on the 22nd morning at that 
time, I had seen the Superintendent of 
Jails. He had told me that Dr, 
Mookerjee was to be removed to a 
nursing home. Then I realised that 
his illness had started so early in th« 
day. I was talking to him till 11 
o'clock. Till that time, nobody had 
removed him to a nursing home. 1 
went away to the court. I had to 
argue the case; the arguments were 
continuing and then I came to know 
through Devki Prashad, the applicant
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in the case, that Dr. Mookerjee was 
removed to some other destination at 
about mid-day on that very day, in a 
small taxi. Dr. Mookerjee had al­
ready had a heart attack, so to say, 
as Pandit Vaid had narrated to me. I 
do not know under 'w hat circums­
tances this arrangement wag made. 
Further, at 5.30, when I was free from 
court work, I wanted to see 
Dr. Mookerjee a ĵfain. I had 
to phone up the District 
Magistrate. He came down. 1 wanted 
to know from him where this nursing 
home was. He did not tell me, but 
said will take you there.^ When I 
was taken from my hotel to the place 
w^iere Dr. Mookerjee was. I found 
that he was kept in the Gynaecologi­
cal Ward. It was no nursing home. 
It was room No. 1 in the G3maecologi- 
cal Ward of the State Hospital, with 
guards posted around it. I found 
Dr. Mookerjee was very ill. Although 
he tried to look cheerful. I remarked 
to him in v e r y  clear language '^ou  are 
not as well as you were in the morn­
ing*'. He said, “no, no: you are a 
pessimistic fellow and so you are 
talking like this.’* I said, *‘pessi- 
mism or no pessimism, it looks on 
your face that you are not all right.*' 
Then I consulted the doctor who wa« 
there. There was one Hindu doctor 
Dr. Aly Jan did not come up with me. 
He was known perhaps in the news­
papers as Ali Mohammed. But I was 
introduced to him as Dr. Aly Jan—I 
am sorry that I am reoeating this. T 
had met that doctor downstairs. H** 
did not come up with me. It was only 
one Hindu doctor who was with me. 
Then I met Girdharilal. the Medical 
Superintendent of that hosoital. When 
I was just leaving at 7-30 p.m . I had 
conveyed to him that the condition of 
Dr. Mookerjee was not all right, '‘You 
must look up,” I said, and he replied, 
"Oh, yes. Sir, I will look up. I will cer­
tainly look up, and I will nay what­
ever attention may be necessary, 
now.” I am quoting this medical 
superintendent who was in charge of 
*h«t hospital. When I was leaving in 
a jeep with the District' Magistrate 
the medical superintendent got a lift 
in that very jeep. I wanted to know

from him where he was going. He 
said, “I want to meet some friend; 
you drop me on the way.” So we 
dropped him at a cinema. What sur­
prised me was that at 10-15 P.M. when 
1 came out of the dining room of the 
hotel* I saw this gentleman Girdharl 
Lai in a staggering condition, dnmk,— 
getting out of the hotel. What atten­
tion he had paid in the hospital when 
he was away, three and a half miles 
away, from the State Hospital of 
which he was the Medical Superinten­
dent? Therefore. I say, Sir. that cri­
minal negligence was there. If there 
was negligence, certainly there was 
criminal negligence on the part of the 
medical authorities and that criminal 
negligence was manoeuvred by Sheikh 
Abdullah who was in charge of every­
thing that was to be done for Dr. 
Mookerjee’s detention and for keeping 
him in detention. I do not know 
what further things had taken place. 
There are rumours that a particular 
medicine was purchased—I am not 
sure of it. There are rumours to this 
eiTect and this requires enquiry. These 
are the very facts which require en­
quiry. These are the things which 
require probing. It is said that at
10 P.M. this gentleman. Dr. Aly 
Mohammad, purchased some medicine. 
What was that medicine? It has been 
remarked that it was that medicine 
which was perhaps used for the in­
jection at about one o’clock. I am 
not sure about these facts. I do not 
know myself any of these facts, be­
cause I was taken to the hospital only 
in the early morning at 3-45 a.m .

The Police Superintendent who came 
to call me told me that Dr. MookerjeeV 
condition was very serious and oxygen 
was being administered to him. When 
I was taken to the hospital I was asked 
to sit in a visitors* room. As I sat 
there I became rather uncomfortable.
I came to see a very seriously ill per­
son. but was kept waiting. I reques­
ted the Superintendent of Police: to 
enquire if I could go inside the room 
of Dr. Mookerjee. He went out of 
the visitors* room and returned a 
minute* later to inform me that doc­
tors told him that Dr. Mookerjee had
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passed away five minutes before my 
arrival. It was only then that I went 
into the room and saw the dead body 
of my leader.

It is these little things which I have 
to bring to your attention: the talks of 
the people, the carelessness of the doc­
tor, the non-attendance of the doctor, 
this suspicion which was conveyed to 
me in so many words by a particular 
man, who will be produced if an en­
quiry is instituted, that Dr. Mookerjee 
would be killed. This suspicion had 
been lurking in the mind of people for 
some time and when I returned from 
the hotel to take the dead body of Dr.
Mookerjee to the airfield the same 
gentleman again met me and said:
‘'Look here, he has been killed, he has 
been killed, he has been killed: get a 
post mortem** I told him: *1 am
sorry I am nobody to ask for a post 
mortem; I will have to consult his 
brother when Dr. Mookerjee’s body is 
taken there.” This general feeling 
was so great in the mind of everybody 
that when I was passing into the hospi­
tal in a jeep, a crowd had collected and 
every one was crying in the same langu­
age: that “he has been killed.” They 
know better than I do their country­
men; they know the people of the 
State much more than I do; they can 
read their minds better than I do. So, 
the suspicions expressed by those peo­
ple—of the people who were in charge 
of the Government of the day in that 
State were there. It is these suspi­
cions which require an investigation.
If these suspicions appear cogent to 
the House, I say this House must in­
sist on the demand that an enquiry 
must be made into the causes which 
led to the death of Dr. Mookerjee.

[ P a n d it  T h a k u r  D a s  B h a r g a v a  in 
the Chair]

I am not here to complain to you.
You must realise yourselves that this 
detention law, wherever it is, whether 
it is in India or in Kashmir, must go.
These are things that are happening 
behind detention. This is only one 
example— t̂he greatest sacrifice that 
has been made to the cause of deten­
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tion. The House would be serving 
the case of the country by driving out 
this detention law from the statute 
bo^k of our country. It is a shame 
and a disgrace that such a law should 
be there. It is a shame and a dis­
grace that detention has been responsi­
ble for taking away the life of a great 
man, a great builder of our nation, one 
who was always taken as a stalwart 
not only of the Opposition but of the 
whole country. He was a champion 
of every right cause.

With these words. Sir. I repeat 
this demand that an enquiry must be 
made into the conditions leading to 
Dr. Mookerjee’s death.

Mr. Chairman: The hon. Home Minis­
ter.

Shrlmati Sucheta Kripalani (New 
Delhi): We would like to know whe­
ther the time is being extended? This 
is a matter on which all the parties 
would like to express their views.

Acharya Kripalani (Bhagalpur cum 
Purnea): Is it going to be an answer 
to the debate?

Mr. Chairman: It is not an answer 
to the debate. If necessary other 
Members will be allowed to speak.

Shri S. S. More (Sholapur): What is 
the meaning of 'if. necessary’?

Shrimaii Sucheta Kripalani: We
object to it.

Mr. Chairman: It is just possible 
after hearing the Home Minister 
everybody may be satisfied. If the 
House so desires, other Members will 
be allowed to speak.

Shri S. S. More: Several Members
who do not share the views of Dr. 
Mookerjee want to have a say on this 
very important matter: therefore they 
should be given an opportunity.

Mr. Chairman: It is premature to 
decide now. I have not said other 
Members will not be given a chance.

Shri S. S. More: I request you on a 
point of sentiment, not on the point 
ot procedure.
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the hon. Minister comparing the death 
of Sarat Babu with that of Dr. Syama 
Prasad Mookerjee?
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Dr. Lanka Sundaram (Visakhapat- 
nam ); The Order Paper says that 
this particular discussion will be from
9-15 to 10-45. The discussion started 
at 9-30. I am asking what exactly Is 
the time-table for this particular de­
bate.

Mr. Chairman: I have already in­
dicated that after Dr. Katju has made 
his remarks other Members will be 
given a chance to speak and it will de­
pend upon the situation then to decide 
how much more time is necessary.

The Minister of Home Affairs and 
States (Dr. KatJu): I rise with a
sense of grief in my heart at the pass­
ing away of a great man. a friend of 
all of us, a friend of mine also of many 
years standing. His father was a 
great figure in our judicial history and 
to him personally I am under a very 
deep debt of gratitude. I knew the 
family very well. Therefore, I need 
not say that the grief that was felt at 
the passing away of Dr. Mookerjee all 
of us share. It was a great misfor­
tune—a national misfortune. It is 
not a question of politics, this way or 
that way, because in parliamentary 
institutions we value men, we require 
men. It is a m atter of no concern 
as to what opinions, they hold: that is 
a matter for the electorate to decide.

But I must say that while I under­
stand this only, I only beseech the 
House not to discuss it on an emo­
tional plane. Let us discuss it calm­
ly. As my hon. friend Mr. Trivedi 
said just now, death comes to all of 
us—it comes sooner or later. When 
I was in Calcutta, Mr. Chatterjee 
knows it, I rose one morning and was 
shocked, ,stunned. to read in the news­
papers that our beloved Sarat Babu, 
Sarat Chandra Bose, elder brother of 
Subhas Chandra Bose, had passed 
away of heart failure, within twenty 
minutes, when he was discussing mat­
ters with friends. What can be done?

I am not talking platitudes—I am 
only saying: let us not be carried away 
by sentiment or emotion, because we 
are discussing very serious matters.

Dr. KatJu: Very serious charges
have been made by Mr. Chatterjee, to 
which I shall reply.

But three days ago we read, again a 
gentleman whom I had the honour to 
meet, that the Chief Justice of the 
Supreme Court of the United States, 
aged sixty-three had passed away after 
a few minutes of heart failure. There­
fore, let us not discuss this on an 
emotional plane.

Acharya bipalani: Is it a di.scourse 
on death?

Dr. Katju: Why are you getting
angry about it.

Mr. Chairman: I would request the 
House to be patient.

The Prime Minister (Shri Jawahar-
lal Nehru): We have been listening
for over an hour to many things which 
are irrelevant to this discussion. I do 
submit we deserve some patience from 
the other side.

Acharya Krjpa!ani: I submit we are 
not here discussing the general ques­
tion of death: we are discussing the 
death of a particular person under 
certain circumstances.

Mr. Chairman: Order, order. I would 
request hon. Members to be kindly 
patient and hear. Nothing will be 
lost by it.

Dr. Katju: Sir. the issues as placed 
before the House come under two dis­
tinct compartments: events leading to 
the arrest of Dr. Mookerjee and 
secondly how he was dealt with, whe­
ther he was carefully looked after 
when he was in detention.

Now, so far as the first issue was 
concerned, my hon. friend Mr. Chatter­
jee said repeatedly in the words of 
Sheridan,— ĥe was charging, charging, 
charging everybody concerned, charg­
ing the Government of India and 
charging the Jammu and Kashmir 
Government with complicity, and with



4199 Detention and 18 SEPTBaCBER 1953 death of Dr. S. P.
Mookerjee

[Dr. KatJu]
conspiracy. For what purpose? For 
getting Dr. Syama Prasad Mookerjee 
into arrest and putting him into jail. 
Now, I say with confidence, Sir, that 
there is not the slightest foundation 
for that. It is a completely baseless 
charge. My hon. friend had put it 
in a very malicious way. But what 
was happening in the country for 3, 
or 4 or 5 months before this particular 
event? The arrest took place on the 
n th  May, I think. Here in Delhi, for 
months there were daily demonstra­
tions. People were coming, and were 
being invited from all parts of India— 
Bengal, Bihar. Rajasthan and Madhya 
Bharat—to congregate in Delhi and to 
break the law and to defy the law. 
There were daily arrests and daily de­
monstrations. I am not now on this 
solemn occasion going into detail* a t 
to the apportionment of the blame, 
but that is what was happening, and 
everybody knows which was the party 
which was organising this particular 
form of agitation—may be right or 
may be wrong, but that is quite a dif­
ferent issue. It was not confined to 
Delhi alone; it was also in the Punjab. 
Hon. Members will please remember 
that when Dr. Mookerjee went from 
Delhi, he declared openly his visit to 
Kashmir and stayed on in the Punjab 
and gave press conferences everywhere 
as to what he was going to do. Again, 
it was a fundamental right for him to 
say what he liked and I am not dis­
puting that. But what had been hap­
pening in Jammu? Right from the 
17th November 1952. the Praja Pari- 
shad had been carrying on a definite 
lawbreaking and subversive move­
ment. I am not diaputing against 
their aima-^theh* alms mav be verv 
noble. There can be no doubt that 
there were episodes—^burning of police 
stations, assaults, killing of people, 
non-ofllcials. officials, police etc.

[Mu. Dfll'tmr-SPKAiceii in the Chair]

Slrtri 1̂. S. More: On a point of order. 
Sir. Is it all relevant here?

Mr. DeputT-Speaken This is quite 
relevant because the discussion refers

to circumstances leading to the deten­
tion of Dr. Mookerjee and his death 
in detention. The Minister is evidently 
trying show the circumstances in 
which detention was found necessary.

Dr. Katju: Now, this is the back­
ground. Dr. Mookerjee was an hon­
oured Member of Parliament. He goes 
there and declares *‘I shall enter into 
Jammu whatever may happen”.

Very well. So far as the permit 
system was concerned* it was intro­
duced on grounds of militaiT 
security. It was introduced some 
time when war-like opera­
tions were being carried on, and it 
was not a question of permit as made 
out by Mr. Chatterjee that there two 
orders which were in the pocket of 
the Inspector-General of Police, Kash­
mir. and he produced them. Dr. 
Mookerjee had been proclaiming that 
he was going to enter Jammu and to 
defy any ban whick would be placed 
against him. I suggest that while 
there was no question of any permit 
being given to him, the Jammu and 
Kashmir Government were justified— 
that is a matter of their business—in 
saying that, having regard to the local 
conditions then prevailing in Jammu 
and the area surrounding Jammu, and 
the lawlessness that was all spread 
over there, it would not be in the in­
terest of peace and tranquillity in the 
land that Dr. Syama Prasad Mooker­
jee should visit that place. Now, I 
am a satyagrahi and all of us have 
been satyagrahis, but the difficulty has 
been that what we were taught when 
the British were ruling here, we have 
not forgotten that, and on the sligh­
test ground everybody says **I am 
going to break the law.** I should 
have expected a leader of the emin­
ence of Dr. Mookerjee, when he was 
shown that order by the Inspector- 
General of Police that “for God’s sake 
don’t enter Jammu territory”, he 
would have said ‘‘Very well, I will go 
back and I will raise hell against the 
order in Delhi and I will protest in 
Parliament and say that you were act­
ing in a detrimental manaeri, but I
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will obey the law/* He did not do so 
and, please remember, Sir, he had 
notified that whatever may happen, he 
would go there. I suggest that the 
Jammu authorities probably knew 
that he would not obey their order of 
not entering Jammu and they may be 
held responsible for not arresting him. 
Therefore, they kept both the orders. 
My hon. friend said that it was all a 
make-believe and it was all malicious 
on the ground that they kept both the 
orders in the pocket. They were entit­
led to do so because they knew what 
was going to happen. They did take, 
very likely, Dr. Mookerjee at his word. 
As Mr. Chatterjee said, they showed 
him the order and thereafter, under 
their Security Law, or Ordinance or 
whatever it is called, they took him 
under detention.

Then the other complaint was that 
they took him to Srinagar. What may 
have happened in Jammu if he had 
been taken there, I do not know, but it 
is a matter for speculation. I am 
again not justifying anything. If I 
had been there, very likely I would 

have broken the journey and stopped 
lo r the night at some dak bungalow. 
Nobody knew, but they took him. This 
is the entire matter. Now on this 
ground Mr. Chatterjee spent many 
minutes sa3ang that the Government 
of India was in conspiracy—those were 
his very words,

Shri V. G. Deshpande (Guna): Not 
the Government of India, but it is 
the Punjab Government......

Dr. Katju: The Government of India 
were charged with conspiracy for 
somehow wangling Dr. Mookerjee*s 
arrest. So far as this point is con­
cerned, it was entirely a matter for 
the Jammu and Kashmir Government 
So far as we are concerned, we did 
not refuse him a permit, and as the 

-rmits were lor military security, we 
let the Jammu and Kashmir Govern­
ment decide as to whether they would 
admit him there or not Now. what 
is wrong in this? Now we are asked 
to make an enquiry.—enquiry into 
what? Nobody could have thought 
at that time that by God*s Injunction 
436 P.S.D.

Dr. Mookerjee was fated to die there. 
Nobody could have foreseen that. The 
two things stand on quite separate and 
distinct footings—(1) the fact of the 
arrest and (2) what happened after­
wards. My respectful submission to 
the House is that so far as the first is 
concerned, it is a figment of imagina­
tion—I am speaking with great res­
traint because it is a solemn occasion 
and ,I do not want to bandy compli­
ments with Mr. Chatterjee. I think 
we are entitled on this side to have a 
little sense of responsibility in these 
matters. Why should we do any 
such thing? Of course, here is the 
Supreme Court. If an3̂ hing had 
happened here, the Supreme Court 
would have Jurisdiction. There is 
the High Court there and it is a res­
ponsible, independent High Court and 
mv hon. friend Mr. Trivedi can tes­
tify to what happened in that High 
Court. When consultation with his 
clients was refused to him, he went 
there and got it and he remained there 
for three hours. And I submit that 
the Jammu and Kashmir Government 
whether it was presided over by 
Sheikh Abdullah at the time or it may 
have been presided over by anybody, 
from this point of view it could say 
with justification that at that precise 
time when the whole of India and 
Jammu particularly was in a sort of 
ferment, they would not allow the lea­
der of a particular party who were de­
liberately organising all these demon­
strations on an India-wide scale, to 
enter their territory. After all they 
were responsible for the maintenance 
of law and order there.
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Now comes the second compartment, 
what happened after. I quite agree 
that it might have been desirable on 
the part of the doctors who were in 
charge to write a letter to the rela­
tions of Dr. Mookerjee. I shall come 

that matter. But the most signi­
ficant feature in the whole of thlf 
episode is that time after time friends 
of Dr. Mookerjee were seeing him and 
none of them wrote a single let­
ter to his brother, Mr. Justice Itnna- 
prasad Mookerjee or told me, anybody, 
the Prime Minister, that **we have
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(Dr. Katju] 
seen Dr. Mookerjee and he was look­
ing very pale, very ill and probably 
he requires nnedical attention”. I am 
not making a point of complaint. But 
all of them had visited him. We have 
been in jail. My hon. friend the 
Leader of the Communist Party has 
been in jail for probably eleven years. 
But in jail you do not enjoy a sort of 
u complete spell of good health. You 
fall ill, it may be a cold, flu, this, that 
or the other, and you get well. It 
may be a case of a swelling in the 
leg or other cases. It may be a seri- 
ou.s illness or it may be a casual, pass­
ing illness. But the fact remains this. 
On the 12th June—I would ask the 
House to mark the dates—on the 12th 
June my hon. friend Mr. Trivedi (the 
House knows that he is a Barrister 
with wide experience, wide know­
ledge and a man of Medical Jurispiu- 
dence also) he goes there and sees Dr. 
Mookerjee. finds him looking perfect­
ly cheerful. Then he comes out. He 
never writes to Mr. Justice Kama- 
prasad Mookerjee or anybody that 
found Dr. Mookerjee looking jovial 
and it does not rtrike me that he 

' was not looking fit”. He went there 
on the 12th; I ir^ngine, not on the 
13th. And on the 16th my hon. friend 
Sardar Hukam Singh went there. He 
stayed with him for two or three 
hours and talked with him politics, 
talked with him as a oatriotic indivi­
dual that this matter should be 
brought to a settlement—all this Praja 
Parishad movement—it was so danger­
ous and detrimental to the country. 
And he issued a statement to the press 
in which he said that Dr. Mookerjee 
was all right. In that three hours’ 
conversation if he had found any ill- 
F)css, even a suspicion in his mind, he 
would have sent word to his friends 
here, he would have communicated to 
his family that Dr. Mookerjee is not 
keeping well. Then comes the IBth, 
another significant date. We are now 
moving very close to the end of the 
chapter of poor Dr. Mookerjee*s life. 
Mr. Trivedi gets sanction from the 
High Court at Kashmir, goes there and 
sees his clients and the House will 
know how much time he spent with

Dr. Mcokerjee^ three hours, getting 
deeds, docimients drafted, getting 
petitions and affidavits drafted, discus­
sed the whole thing, sat there, I ima­
gine must have had a cup of tea, talk- 
fed to him all sorts of things, comes 
back, never says a word about illness 
to anybody, never writes to Mr. Justice 
Ramaprasad Mookerjee that “I spent 
three hours with Dr. Mookerjee and it 
seems to me that his health is a bit 
unsatisfactory”, never says so. That 
is the 18th.

Then we come to the 20th, dry 
pleurisy, a little attack of fever. In 
this book broadcast in the name of 
the mother, whoever may have organi­
sed the issue of this book, you get a 
temperature chart. Temperature does 
not exceed 102. But it is there, dry 
pleurisy, doctors* treatment. And 
then comes the 22nd. I ask the House 
to consider what I am saying. In the 
morning at 4 o’clock there is a sudden 
deterioration, sinking sensation, pro­
fuse perspiration, fall in respiration 
and everything. And by God’s grace 
one of the fellow prisoners was a Vaid 
and something was immediately done 
and the patient got over it. A doctor 
came. The city is far away. The doc­
tor came at 7 o’clock, examined him 
and said 'Something wrong with the 
heart; we will have to take him to the 
Nursing Home’. Mr. Trivedi again 
goes there. I say I am not a doctor
of medicine but I am a doctor of
human experience. I have had these 
illness in my family and in familie* 
everywhere. Let Mr. Trivedi con­
sider how we behave in this matter.
Here was a patient suffering from a 
heart disease, who had had a heart at­
tack at 4 o’clock in the morning, and 
the Barrister goes there at 10 oVlock 
and soends one full hour in consulta­
tion with the client. I say I blame 
the doctor. The doctor should not
have allowed any visitor to sec the
patient even for one minute.

Shrimati Sucheta Kripalani: Exact­
ly.

Dr. Katja: Please wait a second.
Just hear it. He went there, he tnllt*
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ed, he was with the patient for an 
hour and a quarter. The case was 
goinn on in the High Court. He has 
got his statement printed in the book. 
And he went to the High Court oi* 
Kashmir to argue the case: did not 
send one word by telegram or tele­
phone to any one in Calcutta ‘this is 
what has happened'*. He knew that 
no information had been given. He 
suggested* probably that information 
might be given. But Dr. Mookerjee 
said “I am quite all right now”. He 
was all right, because he was talking 
with him for one hour. So everybody 
thought it was a passing sensation, 
for two minutes, and there was noth­
ing very serious about it. Very well. 
Mr. Trivedi is very worried about it. 
comes back from the Court and goes 
again to this so called Nursing Home 
—everybody now mentions it in a 
very derisive language—he goes there, 
and would you believe it, Sir, again 
he stays with the patient. For how 
long? From 5-15 to 7-30.

Shrl U. M. Trlvedl: I am sorry;
from 6-30.

Dr. Katjn: 1 beg your pardon. I 
have got the times here. Let us say 
from 5-30 to 7-15 or 7-20. ^

Shri U. M, Trivedi: Sorry to inter­
rupt. From 6-30 to 7-30. I left 
the High Court only at 5-15.

Dr. Katja: It does not matter when 
you reached there.

The Deputy Minister of Natural 
Resources and Scientific Researeh
(Shri K. D. Maiavlya): Yes ;»nd
stayed there with a heart patient for
at least one hour.

Shrimali Sucheta Kripalani: The
Doctors should not have allowed that.

Dr. Katju; He says:

found Dr. Mookerjee in bed 
in g reclining condition. He 
looked very pale though smiling.
I remarked to him that he was 
not as well as he was in the morn­
ing. But he would not accept 
that. He said that he was feel­
ing a little better. Then, the

He went through them a li He 
dictated some answers to Mr. Trivedi, 
signed cheques and did some com­
mercial business. He sat there and 
probably talked politics again, and 
talked about the case. Here was a 
heart patient. I blame the Doctors 
for allowing this interview. I blame 
Mr. Trivedi worse for going there.

Dr. N. B. Khare (Gwalior): Let us 
enquire into the conduct of Mr. 
Trivedi.

Iir. KatJu: What is this affection? 
If tnere is a patient suffering from 
heart trouble, you leave him alone. 
You may go there, sit in the ante­
room, take all care of him, supply 
him medicines and nurses and nil 
that. But, the patient has to be 
absolutely silent. Is this the be­
haviour of a friend? Of course, I 
do not know what he talked about. 
He talked about the case: he talked 
about the Praja Parishad; he talked 
about the news in the current news­
papers and everything. What hap­
pened then? He left him there at 
7-30. At 9 there was noticeable 
deterioration and at 1, it got worse. 
The Doctors did what they could.

My hon. friend Mr. Chatterjee has 
read the statements of doctors and he 
is perfectly right in saying that I 
know many of them. One was our 
Consultant in the Government House 
there: a capable man. But, please
remember, this was at one o’clock or 
a quarter to one in the night. How 
did Sarat Babu die? His brother 
Sunil Babu told me that his only 
grievance was that he could not reach 
him. Within half an hour he passed 
away. You are now putting it thick 
on everybody. I must say I woula 
have expected better from a barrister: 
repeating and detailing all sorts of 
gossip that he heard in the bazar. 
He said, so and so will be killed; so 
and so will be killed. But he was 
very careful to say, I only heard it,
I know nothing about it; I can pro­
duce the man who told you about the 
gossip. In my profession, I hav«»
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heard these gossips hundreds of times. 
It is remarkable that in this long 
statement which is printed in 
this book from pages 43 to 48. there 
is not one word of all this gossip. I 
mm not blaming him. I am not 
saying that he is now saying this. 
Probably, he forgot all about it when 
he gave this statement. But. he does 
not say one word about it.

Then, everybody thought that in­
formation must be given to the rela­
tives. Mr. Trivedi asked Dr.
Mookerjee whether he wanted him to 
inform his family. Dr. Mookerjee 
said, I have sent telegrams at
2 o’clock, no further information is
necessary. I again think,—this is my 
personal opinion—that it would have 
been better if the Doctors m spite 
of what Dr. Mookerjee was saying or 
not saying, had telegraphed to
Calcutta. Dr. Mookerjee had sent 
these telegrams out of consideration 
for the feelings of his old mother, his 
son and his brother. He has put it 
mildly. But you ought to know that 
this was a case of heart trouble. Mr. 
Trivedi had been told. Did Mr. Trivedi 
send any telegrams to any one?

11 A.M.

Shri U. M. Trivedi: I am sorry to
interrupt. The District Magistrate 
in my presence said that the Tele­
grams had been sent. What was 
the use of my sending other tele­
grams?

Dr, KatJu: I am on another matter. 
Dr. Mookerjee’s personal telegrams to 
the family were reassuring: Don’t
worry; I am much better: I am
being looked after very well; every­
thing that can be done on the face of 
earth is being done; Quite all right. 
But. if you go there and you find that 
the patient is suffering from heart 
trouble. I should have expected that 
something must have been done by 
you, by anybody, by every friend.

Now, you are laying thick on 
enquiry. Enquiry into what? What 

_ is the enquiry? Please remember, 
the object of an enquiry is three­

fold. If anybody has been guilty of 
a crime, he ought to be punished. 
Otherwise, if there is no crime, if 
there is no negligence, then an 
enquiry is directed to avoid mistakes. 
There is an air crash; an enquiry is 
made as to the causes of the air crash 
so that it may not occur again. What 
have I to enquire? What am I to 
enquire? Here is the treatm ent 
prescribed by learned doctors, com­
petent efflciei^t men. They say that 
the medicine that was given should 
have been given 18 hours earlier. 
That is Dr. Khare’s opinion.

Dr. N. B. Khare: 1 say so even
now.

Dr. Katju: They say that morphina 
should have been given, and so on, 
the Doctors did, I think, what they 
could best do. Events were moving 
so fast. Nobody thought this was 
coming.

Mr. Chatterjee put me a question 
as to when the Government of India 
came to know about it. The Prime 
Minister was away in Europe. I 
have not asked my hon. friend the 
Deputy Leader of the House as to 
when he was informed. I was in­
formed of it by an intelligence report 
at about half past four in the 
morning. The report was that Dr. 
Syama Prasad Mookerjee was in a 
very bad way in health and his con­
dition was causing grave anxiety. I 
was really woken up. I asked what 
should be done now. I told them, 
you better ask again how he is now; 
ask whether his relatives have been 
informed, and whether any telegram 
has been sent. Before I could get 
an answer, he had passed away. I 
tell you that the shock that the whole 
country felt was because of the delay 
in the delivery of the unlucky tele­
grams which Dr. Mookerjee had sent, 
i can imagine the state of the mother 
and the brother. They go to the 
telephone; they take up the telephone. 
Suddenly comes this news that Dr. 
Mookerjee has passed away. The 
Prime Minister has already told what 
had happened and about the break 
down of the contacts on account of
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the atmospheric condition. Therefore, 
everybody was surprised. But, I do 
say this. I do not want to go into 
the whole of this matter, Mr. 
Chatterjee knows the gentleman very 
well; so do I know. He is a w riter 
in the Hindusthan Standard; he is a 
great friend of his and a friend of 
mine. His non de plume is Homa; 
Thomas. Dr. Mookerjee was writing 
to him .and some letters of Dr. 
Mookerjee had been published. The 
correspondence is there; the letters 
are there. Everybody was writing. 
Dr. Mookerjee never himself suspect­
ed that he was in danger of his life. 
It came like a flood within 3 or 4 
hours. I do say as a layman that 
that flood very likely came because 
one of the great dams was broken, 
namely silence was not observed and 
Dr. Mookerjee was troubled by his 
Visitors twice on that day for three 
hours. That is my charge.

Shri T. K. Chaudhurl (Bcrham- 
pore): And doctors did not prevent 
that.

death of Dr. S, P, 
Mookerjee 

not be troubled.

prevent
(Inters

Shame

Dr. Kaiju: Doctors did ^not 
that. He got afraid of* it. 
ruption).

Shrimati Sucheta Kripalani:
that you give such an excuse.

Shri U. M. Trlvedi: Does the hon.
Minister know that so far as I was 
concerned, I was only informed at 
7-15 when I was talking to Dr. 
Mookerjee, that he was suffering from 
heart trouble?

Dr. Katju: Sir. I am closing now. 
Really, the House is entitled to ex­
pect something quite different from 
Mr. Trivedi. He is a member of my 
profession. He has dealt with lots 
of murder cases, lots of civil cases in 
Rangoon, in Neemuch, in Madhya 
Bharat, in different High Courts. 
Was it proper for him to trouble Dr. 
Mookerjee on that day in that state 
of health for three hours talking to 
him? That is what I want to ask.

Shri U. M. Trivedi: Only at 7-15
when Dr. Mookerjee placed his hand 
on the heart I was told by the doctor 
that he had heart trouble and he

should 
tlon).

Shri Gadgil (Poona 
Every one was informed 
a serious matter.

(Interrupt
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Central): 
that it waa

The Deputy Minister of Communi* 
cations (Shri Raj Bahadur): He knew 
it in the morning.

Dr. KatJu: I do not wish to detain 
the . House any longer. Mr. Trivedi 
actually is forgetting himself. He in 
forgetting that Dr. Mookerjee had 
been removed from the bungalow on 
the Nishat Bagh to the Nursing Home 
because he had been taken ill. He 
had been informed before that that 
there was a heart attack in the 
morning. Now he says: “He put
his hand on the heart and I was told 
that he had heart trouble'*.

Shri Bogawat (Ahmednagar South): 
The cat is out of the bag. He knew 
about the heart trouble.

Dr Katju: I am very sad. I am 
not taking part in this debate in any 
spirit of hilarity at all. We are all 
very sorry. We are lamenting. It 
is a matter for lamentation. My 
heart goes out to the aged mother* 
everybody. But then, what is there 
to enquire? The facts are all there. 
Everything has been collected. What 
are you going to do? Mrs. Kripalani 
or Mr. More said that this is a senti­
mental matter. I say it is a senti­
mental demand for an enquiry, and 
there is nothing to enquire about

Shri Kelappan (Poonnani): I want 
to have information from the hon. 
Minister----

Mr. Deputy-Speaker: I would like 
to know one thing from the House. 
We had fixed this time from 9-15 to
10-45. No doubt, the other four 
Short Notice Questions took about 
ten minutes. Therefore, I thought 
this might conclude at 11 o'clock. 
But a number of hon. Members in  ̂
eluding the Deputy Leader of the 
Communist group, Shrimati Sucheta 
Kripalani and others want to speak.
So we have to encroach upon this 
non-official resolution. Then it will 
have to go to some other day, and it
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[Mr. Deputy-Speaker]
will be continued, if we do not finish 
this. Or. if we finish this earlier, 
then we will continue discussion on 
the resolution, and then it will go on 
to some other day. I leave it 
entirely to the opinion of the House. 
Or, if the House is agreeable to fix 
half an hour more for the present 
discussion, I will allow ten minutes 
.to each hon. Member to speak.

)Some Hon. Members: No no.

Mr. Deputy-Speaker: One hour. I 
ar.i absolutely in the hands of the 
House so far as this is concerned.

Shri Gads^il: What is there to be
further discussed: Each side has
com pletely and in great detail put 
matters before the House. It would 
be only repetition, and perhaps a little 
more emotional expression. (Inter^ 
Tuption). It should conclude.

Mr. Deputy-Speaker: We will have
one hour more, and conclude at 12 
o’clock, take up the resolution at 12 
o’clock, and then continue it later on.

Sbri Kelappan: I wanted to ask a 
question.

Mr Deputy-Speaker: What is hurry 
'‘or this hon. Member while I am 
talking? Hon. Members on each 
side will have ten minutes, or 15 
minutes. I have no objection. At 
12 o’clock I will take up the resolu­
tion if it is the desire of the House. 
Let it not be understood that I am 
intei ested in closing the debate. This 
is a m atter in which I am guided by 
the will of V:he House. I have no 
objection. If we do not finish, the 
Resolution will be postponed.

Shrl S. S. More: Are we not meet- 
ting in the afternoon?

Mr. Deputy-Speaker: No. We are
not meeting. Even if the resolution 
cannot be taken up today, it will not 
be a closed matter. It will stand 
over.

' Shri R. K. Chaudhury: May I speak?
Mr. Deputy-Speaker: Shri H. N.

Mukerjee.

Shri H. N. Mukerjee (Calcutta 
N orth-E ast): S ir----

Shri Kelappan: I wanted some ih- 
fcrmation, Sir.

Mr. Deputy-Speaker: Mr. Kelappan 
wants to ask some information of the 
hon. Home Minister.

Dr. Katju: Will you please put the 
question?

Shrl Kelappan: It was given out by 
responsible representatives of the 
Government that Dr. Syama Prasad 
was kept in a fine bungalow over­
looking a beautiful lake. May I know. 
Sir, if the biggest room in that so- 
called bungalow occupied by Dr. 
Syama Prasad measured exactly  
8'XIO', much smaller than the 
ordinary single cell in our jails occu­
pied by ordinary prisoners?

Dr. Katju: I have not seen the 
house myself, but it is a beautiful 
cottage overlooking a very beautiful 
hill and a beautiful lake. You do not 
want very much space in jail as you 
require air and views and beautiful 
prospects. It may be from that point 
of view and inasmuch as the com­
pound was small, that at the request 
of Sardar Hukam Singh, Dr. Syama 
Prasad was given the right or liberty 
to walk about in the whole of the 
Nishat Bagh. And please read his 
letters, his secretary’s letters, that 
they were looked after most comfort­
ably and most attentively.

Shrl Jawaharlal Nehru: May I say
a word? Sardar Hukam Singh has 
been there and probably he knows. I 
have not seen it, but at least I have 
seen pictures of the buildings, and I 
have seen the buildings from outside. 
These are small houses; of course, 
these are private houses. There are 
a number of these small houses and 
their rooms are small. Of course, 
if Mr. Kelappan realises, in these 
wintry places cottages have small 
rooms. They do not keep big 
rooms, they become very cold. I t is 
not meant as a jail. What the exact
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size is I cannot say. Sardar Hukam 
Singh might say.

Mr. Deputy-Speaker: Let it be
clearly understood that this debate 
will not in any case go beyond 1-15.
It will be ended by 1-15 and if we 
conclude earlier, we take up the 
resolution. Otherwise, it will stand 
over.

Shri S'. V. Ramaswamy (Salem): 7 
saw the room. It was about 12'X15'

Shri Jawaharlai Nehru: I may in­
form Mr. Kelappan that the room
was 12'X15\

Sardar Hukam Sin^h rose-^

Mr. Deputy-Speaker: Let him speak. 
Thereafter Mr. H. N. Mukerjee.

Sardar Hukam Sinffb (Kapurthala— 
B hatinda): I had no desire to
participate in this discussion because 
I saw my revered leader one week 
earlier. It was on the 16th that I 
went there. It is correct that I had 
a talk with him about this Praja 
Parishad agitation and other things 
also. I stayed there rfor more than 
two hours. It is also correct that I 
did not find anything in his 
appearance that should have caused 
any anxiety to me. He did not 
complain of anything against the 
Government, but the only complaint 
that he made was that if he were 
allowed morning walks, perhaps ne 
would be much better and feel 
happier.

So far as that bungalow is con­
cerned. we sat outside. I did not go 
in, and I cannot say what dimensions 
the rooms were. So far as beauty 
is concerned, nobody can doubt that. 
I t was certainly overlooking a beauti­
ful lake—the D al lake as it is called— 
and therefore we sat outside. The 
only complaint made by Dr. 
Mookerjee was that the enclosure of 
the cottage outside was rather a small 
one and there were vegetables grow­
ing and he had no place or room to 
walk about, and that certainly he was 
feeling very much. T^e same even­
ing I met Sheikh Abdullah in the 
Nehru Park. I happened to meet

him. He came there incidentally* 
and I was walking there, and I com­
plained to him that this much at least 
should be allowed, and I must say 
that immediately he agreed that that 
would be allowed from the next 
morning, though I learnt afterwards 
that these orders could not be exe­
cuted and Dr. Mookerjee was not 
having those walks for the one or two 
days that he remained there. I am 
not sure about it. I was told that 
those orders had not been executed, 
but so far as Sheikh Abdullah was 
concerned, the same evening he 
assured me that this would be per­
mitted. They had done it on 
account of the fear that perhaps 
people might gather together in large 
numbers when he came out. and there 
might be some trouble, and they 
might have to look after the security 
or other things. That was the reply 
that he gave me.

So far as his health is concerned, I 
cannot say what happened. I cannot 
contribute anything as to what was 
the cause of his death, because on 
the 20th I went away to Phalgaon 
and there on the 21st, one day after 
my departure, the Deputy Prime 
Minister met me and he informed me 
that the Government would be calling 
me again to discuss the whole thing 
with Dr. Syama Prasad Mookerjee. 
Because when I had suggested to him 
that he should review the situation 
and that I thought that something 
should be done, he said that he alone 
could not decide it, but if Pandit 
Premnath Dogra was brought from 
Jammu perhaps together they might 
review the whole situation and might 
together come to something positive.
I suggested that to the Government 
and that was also agreed to. Pandit 
Premnath Dogra was brought ther« 
during the night, within 24 hours. 
What discussions they had I could not 
know. Whether they had agreed to 
do something, I cannot tell. But on 
the 21st I was told that Dr. Mookerjee 
had some slight trouble and the 
Deputy Prime Minister then told me 
that he had deputed certain doctors 
to look after him and that perhaps 
in a day or two he would be a ll
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right, and then the Government would 
be calling me to intervene if I could 
be of any assistance to them. Further 
than that, as to the dimensions 
of the room or about any other thing.
I have no personal knowledge.

Shri H. N. Mukerjee: I take part
in this discussion with some hesita­
tion. I do so, Sir, because I feel 
that in the course of this debate no­
thing should be said or done which 
would have the repercussion of 
affecting for the worse our relations 
with the people of Kashmir, affecting 
for the worse the secularity of our 
democracy and affecting for the worse 
the position of the minorities in this 
country and in Pakistan. I say this 
because, Sir, the day Dr. Syama 
Prasad Mookerjee’s body was brought 
down to Calcutta, the day when the 
news spread, there was a danger 
which we had to confront, a danger 
of the deviation of public sentiment 
into a communal demonstration which 
would have done terrible damage 
to the morale of our people and to 
the economy of our country—the 
entire set up of our life today. And 
that is why, Sir. I feel that we should 
proceed in this discussion with all 
possible caution and circumspection.
And that is why we should concent­
rate our attention on those m atters 
which are really of major significance 
as far as the safeguarding of the 
liberties of the citizen in India is 
concerned.

Now, Sir, this m atter has been dis­
cussed fairly exhaustively and, as the 
Home Minister said, we can divide 
this point into two compartments, as 
it were. As far as the first compart­
ment is concerned, we can say that 
the movement which Dr. Mookerjee 
was supporting was a movement 
about which we have expressed our­
selves very strongly, and possibly, if 
we were the Government, we would 
have certainly tried to see to it that 
that movement did not get any fu r­
ther encouragement because we 
thpvght it was mischievous. But if 
we were the Government, surely we 
would not have done what the
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Congress Government had done^ 
namely, put him in detention without 
trial. We would certainly not have 
done it, if we were the Government. 
{Interruptions)»

Sbri G. H. Deshpande (Nasik 
—Central): You don*t know what you 
would do.

Shri H. N. Mukerjee: If we were
the Government, as I said, certainly 
we would have a Coalition Govern­
ment. Even if we had the majority 
vote in the country, we would have 
a Coalition Government, and we 
would not have practised detention 
without trial. And we say, Sir, 
there was no justification for the 
Government of this country to put a 
man like Dr. Syama Prasad Mooker­
jee in detention without trial when 
he was already placed on trial for 
something which he had done in 
Delhi, when further prosecution, if 
necessary, could certainly have been 
continued against him. The Govern­
ment chose for its own reasons— 
which I am not supposed to know— 
to put him in detention without trial, 
and that is something about which 
we wish to express our stern dis­
approval.

Then the next thing happened. He 
died. He died in detention. Now, 
Sir. it is good in a way, though it 
has its own irony—that we are dis­
cussing today a death in detention, 
because it is the death of a man of 
the stature of Dr. Syama Prasad 
Mookerjee. Deaths in detention 
have happened earlier in so many 
other cases. Deaths have happened 
in detention here. People have 
been taken out of detention and shot 
in Telengana. People have been 
shot in detention inside the jail in 
Salem and in the Presidency Jail, 
Calcutta and in the Dum Dum Jail. 
All that sort of thing, has happened. 
This is not the time to rake up all 
that, but it is very necessary for this 
House to remind itself that when a 
person is in detention without trial, 
it is obligatory on the Government 
to see to it that at least his health is
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did have certain kinds oi heart com^ 
plaints which might lead to serious* 
complications later on. As far aa 
the record goes—I have not got it at 
hand now—the doctors said: “Medi­
cal science has advanced very greately 
since you found out certain things. 
We know what should be done in 
regard to your health and, therefore, 
we treat you as we want to treat 
you”. Yet nobody had the slightest 
sense, or the simple courtesy, to send 
a call to Calcutta and get Dr. Bidhan 
Chandra Roy—Dr. Katju's great 
friend—who, in spite of being a- 
political imbecile, is a great physician. 
Nobody had the sense to send for Dr. 
Bidhan Chandra Roy and tell him: 
“Dr. Roy, you know Dr. Syama 
Prasad Mookerjee. You have treated 
him well many a time before. So. 
you should know. This is what Dr. 
Mookerjee says”. Nobody had that 
slightest sense or that courtesy.

looked after properly. Deaths in 
detention do give rise to some kind 
of suspicion. And therefore I say, 
Sir, in spite of what the Home Minister 
has said, there are certain very 
serious misgivings in our minds. I 
repeat that in spite of the very 
regrettable loss which the country has 
suffered by the death of Dr. Syama 
Prasad Mookerjee. I repeat that this 
is an issue which should not be ex­
ploited for communal reactionary 
purposes. But I say. Sir, at the same 
time that there is a definite impres­
sion in the minds of the majority of 
our people—if the Government is 
really concerned to ascertain what 
the views of the majority is today— 
there is a very definite impression 
that things did not go rightly in the 
case of the treatm ent of Dr. Mooker- 
jee. 1 was astounded, Sir, that the 
Home Minister accused my friend, 
Mr. Trivedi, for having gone and seen 
him for three hours. He, of course, 
Sir, is not a medical man; he had a 
job of work to do. He had to go 
and find out things and ascertain 
points from his client who happened 
to be Dr. Syama Praskd Mookerjee. 
If Mr. Trivedi was allowed by the 
doctor in charge of Dr. Syama Prasad 
Mookerjee to stay longer' than 15 
minutes or so, what business could 
he have to interpose his imaginary 
opinion regarding Syama Prasad 
Mookerjee's health? He had no  
business to approach him that way; 
he was there because, as I have said, 
he had a job of work to do. That 
is why, Sir, I said that I did not 
understand why Dr. Katju said this.

Dr. Katju gave other comparisons— 
with the death of Sarat Chandra 
Bose, for example. It was highly 
misleading. There have been cases 
of heart failure, of course. Cases 
have occurred and especially when a 
person is suffering from some kind of 
heart affection, naturally death would 
occur suddenly. But in this case, 
what happened? Dr. Syama Prasad 
Mookerjee had already had a heart 
attack or something very like a heart 
attack sometime in 1946. He was 
nearly dead, by all calculations. He 
told the doctors in Srinagar that he

Sir, here was a person with whom. 
I had my fundamental differences. 
Personally, we have been friends. If 
you will allow a personal reference, 
for three generations our families 
have been friends. But that did not 
prevent my attacking Dr. Syama 
Prasad Mookerjee’s ideas and ideolo> 
gies, and policies and principles 
much more sharply than anybody on 
the Treasury Benches had the gump­
tion to do, I have done that. Btit 
that is no reason for me to keep quiet 
today. That is why I say that the 
Government of this country has, for 
some peculiar reason, come to certain 
extraordinary impressions about the* 
Opposition. I know it. I know  
that that is the reason why so many 
things that have been said here are 
treated in a completely cavalier 
fashion by Members of the Treasury 
Benches, and that is why they have 
developed an indifference towards 
their critics. It is that kind of senti­
ment which led them to give him 
medical treatm ent of a sort which has 
been so sharply criticised by other 
medical experts. I know Doctors 
differ. I am not going to say, Sir, 
that the medical gentlemen who* 
treated Dr. Syama Prasad Mookerjee 
did it all negligently and deliberate-
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LShri H. N. Mukerjee]
Jy. But there are certain charges 
4Df inefficiency regarding the medical 
treatment. Those charges of ineffi- 
.ciency have been seconded and sup­
ported by the Home Minister in the 
speech which he has made today,

Tiierefore, Sir, we only want this, 
th a t since death in detention is a very 
serious matter, since many people in 
xietention in our country especially 
in the Congress regime have lost their 
Jives either by shootings or for other 
reasons,—sometime ago the case came 
up of the Manipur prisoners who 
were in detention in the Midnapore 
jail and who died of heart failure 
and the Home Minister made some 
facetious rem arks about their death— 
we know these things happen—^but 
since death in detention has happened 
of a very im portant and powerful 
man, with whose politics, I in parti­
cular, had the most basic differences,— 
but that is neither here nor there,— 
but since death in detention has 
happened of this very important 
public figure in oiir country, if the 
Government really cares a tinker’s 
curse about public opinion in this 
country, it  should try  to satisfy 
public opinion and place before the 
public certain facts which posslbty 
nre in the possession of Dr. Katju but 
which he could not produce in the 
open. He should try  to have a 
•thorough investigation into the medi­
cal side—I do not say there is any 
case for a judicial enquiry, I do not 
say there is any need for finding out 
why Dr. Syama Prasad Mookerjee 
was arrested and put in jail—all that 
is not the kind of thing which we are 
in a position to do—but as far as the 
facts of the death are concerned, as 
far as the allegations regarding the 
negligence or inefficiency or both are 
concerned, there must be an investi­
gation. If you do not have that in­
vestigation, you are setting up a pre­
cedent, this Government would be set­
ting up a very very bad precedent 
and that would be a most disastrous 
Infraction of the rights of the citizens 
of India.
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^  #■ arrr # i j ^ t a n ^

I ^ror % I *td <. ^̂ ,<1 JT
^  '^H ^  T F T  %  ^^H >ltt> ^

^  « F t 'f3 i^  w gr ^nin% f  
arr^TTT ^  ^  W f e ^  1̂ ,
^TT#t T |  I ^  T f ’ TT

5TRT ^  I ^

"^nrv ^  \
f'liT  arrr ^  tt^r a rR ^ft ^ t ,  ^fr ^
?r ^  arnnft a m  %  f r d s r  t  t p t

*iT, 3ft?: a n ^  f a r  ^  * r ^
T R  T T  <rr f v  ^  arTT %■ f r w  

j R J T t s  'TK t s m  «TT, 3 ¥  v t  a rrr
•T r i i s H  ^  a ftx  ^ R  f ^ i ^ H

%  3rt^ ^5T?n '̂ {?ft arrr ?'
f r  f«ii^T ^  ?

irfi’ ^nnff w ntff strt aftr 4'
3PR Ir 3TR wWf [Ir -c ff^  fi
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srtr ^  f?r«nT 

7 ^  STTrT ^  il?
f  m  inm FT 5 I ariftrr arrr 

?sVt ^  *1̂ 1 g«M^d ’TT ^5

f ^  in rr  %  n r r  ^  ?ft t t  
"’HT t  3TVt ^  ^niT ^  TTir ^  3JT7 ^  

fl)T*r >̂T«TT. I Pt̂ 'TST
■̂ rF̂ q̂  irr r̂ ^  grTT

^  >TT ^  Tw ^  I iT̂
arrr+r ^ s ir  ^  grnrr t  ^

arrr ^  sftr s r t  snrr 

WH T̂̂ TJT ^  srhr ^>rrr % 'tst

<f ?rt, aniT JaTTT^ IRT ^

■<TT^ t, aft arrr ^  ??r ’tt*i% ^  srN-
^rVT spTT’ft I STTT

gft arirrjj;^? ^  f, 5T? at]
% an rn j^?  JT1W1T 7T^ f ,  ^
-»fT PSF '̂V % 3rn?JI  ̂ JTTOTT 
f  I ann: sTPr w  ^  % sttt-

?sf ̂  3 f ^  !T ^  5ft 'ar^r
tft-iTr I arVr ani’T 3̂̂  anwrli
^  ■>i4i«( ferr, TO *1̂  ^  3 t
■4?r f%*IT artr [ai'l4̂ > 3f̂ T? g/TTX

^  T̂Tt7*T J3TT fv  3rPT®̂  '»H^d 
aftr ■4«iI«'Ti ^  'TT̂ 5

% I 'snffwrT % ftnr t t  t t

^W!T sTRTK't frftrw ^  t. arnr 
^  ¥V ^«TT ^  3fk

5T rrt TiTtT#|- f'KT

spfTT? I ?P?Fn:% w  5R?%
%■ 5Tt «|Tr IpnTrT JTT 
faith 3iTcrr T??n t- n̂rr 3in

?WT 5T^ rft 31H

fpm  3jm»r ^  ^  wt»f1f

^  ^  srPTT T |  I STTT

^»n?t Ji? ^r«nn  ̂ ?' ft? art ariwiw  

wsft’fiTT fea^  t^

’ t̂ir f  aftr ^  3flr arrr 'snt fZT

f ,  3ITT% fT = (t^  #  3Tt l^fT 3 T R *ft
# s^  <rr w  3?K^ ^  arrri? «k ftnn, 
^  ^ ? rr 3 i tT  3 T F P P t ^  n  ^  

S7>T ^  »nrr arTr T̂̂fJr % ^Toff 
arra- ^  ^  ^ftf ^  t ,

^  ^  ^T% {eft arrr faith
?5T T i f t ^ w t  ^  ^  ?  * f  3TTT ?r 
w r? 5 ft ft? a m  ^  3 H ^  5qf«RTFT 

? « n v > T w r  T t  ^ T  ^T% , r f t  s i T f t n : 

' *̂1 ^11 'f l i^ t  ^  i'*ci ^  f Rf*^

f?nf ?

5 T ? 2 T  53TnTT W n ? l ^ T 3 f f  ^  i^?JT 

% s)A *T 'Jii'  ̂ '̂TT'TT 
^ rr^ t « il ^  'a'l'iTi p T T ’ R I T ^ t  ^  ^ T T ,  

gsTPT « r« '0  To5T3T 3 |k  5nr
^  ^  I ajTT f  ftr 5TS7T 

ij^ r s f f  ^  ^ 'l ^ * f l <  j f  f ’ R ' T f l r f t  ^  > T R ^  

9XVP! W  ^1^ ?PT ^  *IT I aniT

^ 3 5 r r r r « p t f f ^  «tt  ? f t ^  j i 5 T r  

^m55ft ^  f r  a r r r ^  w r  «ft ft?
ftRT ITT2T ^ 3 f f  ■TSFT̂ ta  <!f % 

5ft ^
\j«i+1 wNt^T •rtfs 5W Mj}̂ i ft?rr 

aftr 3R ^  r̂ ^  »nTr ft? f ?  
je e p d n v e  % M  ?t, eft t t -  
f i n  »r % ^  f5r*TT f j f t  ^  W I T T  sn rrs 

% O w  *w aftr ipFRrv ^  ^9ptt 
«pff jfu w n ir ftmr ft? ^  ^  *rr*ft5T 
%«fr T t f f f  a r  f w  ? w  ^  5ft 

3f?IT m ? 5 T  sf ^??T ^  fR f^JTT

f n ^ r t f f T  ^  ft?  SfTT 5ft*T -S ^  *P t  P K t n K  

^ft ftrtirSTcY a m  *T5t %5TT 

«f 3i1t W W  ^  arrif ^  Jr

5 7 T  T T  T T ^ ’ f t r  TT3T R p T T  I <^<r*id f T  

9?I*JJT f i j ' j f  1 Wr ^  «  <.̂ 1 < f>T JIHIJ4I J3 f r 

«rr artr TO >TTfj7J % «i?fi5  ^  sTfzr 

5T>r 7̂  f .  '? ft f ? m ^  ^r
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Pr̂ 'T?) r(t «pt {I VTTOT I '^ f T  
TT =5Tt̂ jf aftr: triwT jt?  ^  ^  

ft: 3TTT arnft

<T I w  ^  3 rfq -^  ¥ i? 3 T  
Jrarsff ^  ^sftJT ^  Ttit^PT 

'BTW fft =^^«rr artr ^sft^ ^  ^  3̂51̂

firilT STT, 3TPT ^  'ThfhT’T
^  js rro  f'ST ? jh t 't ,  w  
^  arrr ^
^  ^ n j p ^  ^  P k w i t
?frr ?T? i f t  T f f  ^  TTf 3TS| F ^  

^  I %fipT i f  3 I N ^
^  f% 3TVT
w r f t  m fl 'rr 1 >r? »ft ^  *rr3; ^
5 ' %  srirr tP (tr[  % a r r ? ^ ^

^  <|0 +K  ^  I  ,  3PR ^  ^

■ s j^  5  3ftr ^  ^  ’f  5T̂ Y 
afTT ^  ^  srF^^^nr ^  ft? arrr 

PlTWR «F tM  «FT’»% % ;«l?lM,
aftr F*i <'W(T ^

»A< 5W !Fra% ^  [ ^  v t  

M I ^  t  f r  ^  f ®  p r

7 an 5) spt ^  ftr**r-

^  sTjff 5 , m r:  3R 
#  m s T  «Pt 3̂^  3R1W n  ^

vn p ftr  tt<,Ti(  ̂ ^  ^ w r  
?fr «T?rr ^  % ?«p p : ^  f ^ ,

i * i ^  ’T^X" 

5 p ^  ^  ^  ?[t
TRifR  % 5T îT 3TSr|?55T

3T? r*TTTr-7?̂  5 %  f<T 'T f ^ i r a r ^  

?5T  ̂ !T?^ TTT^ ^f srrPT^r ^

STTT ^  t |  <T I <TiT’7^3T? i  |.ftr] 5T3

a r ^ ^ r  f?5rr ^srnrfr

% TPRTT T̂ ^Tjff % 5rt  ̂ ^

sT t̂ T r  ?rf^  >T, ??r 5i2if 7 ^  %

f^'^r nnp T ̂  ?>TT i  afrt

I JT 'a rrr^  t{fr ^

fVT % 11̂ 1 ^  %  9TTT *sY*T

^  *n*j% ^  53rnsr ^ptt^ 3fk ^?rr
an*?  ̂ ft? arrr 
3rm ffRT ?TrfT5T TTnrr %

?rr»PT m  ^  f  0  f  3Tf

?*rr̂  sT|1f t  â k
?»T5fln ark 3PTT^
g r f ^  ^  irnr !Tt f*r ?r tttrt

^̂ 5T ?tflf ^  I ^ 1f ^
fTT^jftr ^  ^  'rV^rn'Y

JT>n: ^  ¥ fT
vRiftr arriT
srm ^  ^

aiV̂  srN” srnr arT̂ ft ff*rfir ?n'5 
V7%̂ nrrr%WHFT? I ftjrarnrrft
4  5!^ ^W fft ftf 35T ^  w H  TTTT #  
w f  t ,  ^  ^  ^irreT ^  ^
f i p i i J t  R r t i n r r f t  «ft, »T r^  a r ® ; ^

3tT̂  »R5f  ̂ >f !T̂   ̂ afk 
^  r̂ ^  % 3ft ^ JT B

Vm *f^ f  TRl ^
aprft ifr <T̂ amn #, 4
tm m B  a r n ^  <ra ^  ^ s t r t  j  
ĵ̂ aTTTVt̂ Tr̂ T̂̂ 3rrsr»n Pp?;̂ *rnT%

# sr?5ft «n arrr ^
3 J ^  t  < ’T ^  t  =

“I sincerely sympathise with the 
sentiments of the mother of late Dr. 
Mukerjee and the members of his 
family. The tragedy occurred w ith 
such suddeness that a good deal of 
misgivings have risen in the minds 
of many people in India. Personal­
ly, I have no objection to afford 
means of satisfying the minds of 
these friends in regard to the con­
duct of the concerned authorities^ 
but it is to be seen whether at this 
time an open enquiry will be con­



ducive to the promotion of the 
larger interests for which all ot us 
are making sincere efforts.”

trgRTJ 3 f l^  
t, %ftrsT ’arw |

a m
3T>T w h 1 < ^  ;n*r
'srr 3!T̂ ;

I

'vShrl N. C. Chatterjee: Would
the hon. Member kindly read the 
next sentence?

Shrimati Sucheta Krlpalani: It says:

''Anyway, I shall have occasion 
to discuss this m atter with you when 
I have an opportunity of meeting 
you.”
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Shrl N. C. Chaterjee:
still willing to consider it.

He is

fq w n f t : But it Is
our Government which fights shy of 
making an inquiry. H

amn ft? Pbt TfiTCT ?R?fiK W f ^

^ I #
5  ftf 3TTT 3\i^ % ^  ^  

>T?r, 3TT̂  a m  3 T ^  

riifVi w 3ft ?rai
?rrTi;tt 3iT!n ^  s fk  arfw?rJfr^^pr 
%gr?5 ^  ŜTfiT ?̂T5Tr
1 1  j r ^  % n' ^
»nft «iV arV?: sr - 4  m z r

n ni ^  HN>
^  m  3T̂ «TT

f k ^ m  m  TK 

H it «ff, ^  if
f w  ?f, ^5T3T Pp ^

^  Ttft ^  inrf^ 
^  f f  3rrRfT tr^  ^

3#5T ^snr^ iRfH %

^  ftnj?T ’®rTf^ ''arnft fsnrfT
’STTf”  I ^  ^TTT
m r  f ,  Jrrr 2fftf f¥ iiT ^  <n 

3̂RFT *PtC fv^rr ^TT v5"5Vr
^  f w m t  ^  trr, ^  'm r 3Tt^
F5T3T 5PT# ^  ^  V
^rrr

^  *rcr ^  I

^  ^  5pt ^  ^
^  3rT«TT ?5t2T ^  ii«N
t ,  ^  ^  l i m  f i

lOT- ^  5 ® ^  5^  ^
*TTW t.̂ 11 *i WVfT
^  \ ^  ^  5^n :

^  STTT w ,
I m  ̂  P r

itTT ^  ̂  J l?  t̂̂ TT ^  ^  ^  W  
j  pfT (ITT?

ITT % 3H^vT ar^ 3Tk le^fwiT aTTT

^  a r r ^ ,  ^  WT??T srtr
^  ^  ^TT̂ fTflf ?rrf% fiiTfiT %

?Fra»2Tr̂  5^nTT r̂ T̂r i
Kumari Annie Mascarene (Trivan­

drum ): Sir, may I ask a question 
from the Home Minister by way of 
clarification?

Mr. Deputy-Speaker: Yes.

Kumari Annie Mascarene: 1 wish
to know whether Dr. Mookerjee's ill. 
health and rather disquieting situa­
tion had given rise to any informa­
tion being sent to his people in Cal­
cutta and whether the Government of 
Kashmir thought it necessary ta  
release him when he was found to be 
dangerously ill as was done during 
the British days of detention?

Dr. N. B. Rhare: I shall take only
three minutes. In my opinion this 
unfortunate death of Dr. Mookerjee^ 
who was a great friend of mine, Is;



^  ^  w w f e r r  %
arrr ?rif ^  sft

ftrc JTre ^  arRrr t  sr? m

^  in p r  irar sf|-»Tf«ft

P p ^  v t  ^  f t m r  ^*rr ttt 
aftr '3^  % ?rnT ^  <3[*p

# ?  3Tk ^  5 ! ^  i f w  w  
«rr I
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I Dr. N. B . KhareJ 
nothing but a medico-political liquida- 

.tion of a most inconvenient and 
determined political opponent. I 
.should say, Sir, that for the 
medical part of it, Srinagar is 
responsible and for the political 
part of it, New Delhi is responsible; 
.and I say it from my personal ex­
perience of the attitude which my 
friends in the Government hold in 
their minds about their political 

^opponents. Sir. I have said so many 
times publicly but never on this 
platform. So, I may tell you, Sir, 
that after the assassination of 
Mahatma Gandhi I found myself 
also placed in the same category as 

•of Dr, Mookerjee. that is of a deter­
mined political adversary I do not 
know whether the Government 
wanted it, but their police, did want 
to get me hanged. Therefore conse­
quent on the assassination of Mahatma 
‘Gandhi they tried to create false 
evidence against me to implicate me 
in the crime.

An Hon. Member: Is it relevant?

Dr. N. B. Khare: It is auite rele­
vant. It is for the Speaker to say. 
You are not in Ihe t3hair.

So this is the mental attitude of the 
‘Government. They want to liquidate 
anything that they find inconvenient, 
and a similar attitude might have 

l>revailed in the case of Dr. Mukerjee.

I am disclosing it here today that 
after the 11th May, when the news 
was flashed that Dr. Mookerjee was 
arrested and detained in Srinagar 
jail, on the ISth May, 1 expressed 
my fear and sentiment or presenti­
ment—whatever you may call it, be­
cause it is my own experience in the 
Mahatma Gandhi assasshiation in­
vestigation— Î said, “he is in Srinagar 
in the hands of enemies, and I am 
doubtful whether he will ever come 
back alive”. I have said so to 
several friends, and I say so in this 
House today.

^  «rrR W  : f ?
trn r  tto ffirnrr Jnrr?

w w  ; srnr 

^nrr^ % ^  ^  t  ’

ST«rf : "H

^  ^  ftr *nr %
^  ^  ^  I J i r r  ? f s k p t

^  ^

^  I irfir a n #  P m r , P m n r ? ,
^  eft ^

a n n  Prar, Prfrr»T?, a rtr
T T  f  afVT 4 ' f  %  3fr

i f t  j m r  f

I  ^  ^r«ft t .  ^  a n r r e V  1 3 f ) T  
^  a n #  *p r %  'TPT ^  sr^ij ^  

T f r  t  I ^  *T?rf>rr ^  %  a rfr? ^
olAlwn #  'TT

a r# ^ 3rTTTr«nff <17 ^ 5 0 #  »T# art^

#  W , ftpT ^  Tt® 5PPTT 
%■ ^  fiwr *rar i

aiTar ? *rr^ ^rnr# s t o  srar? 
Jjspaff ^  j w r r  ^  a j ^

W T T r  ? f p  7 {  v t ?  jaftrr « ftr r  5 r t  
iTTlf f  I a r.T  f f t  3T?f ^  »r?r?m m  w tfr

tTT, ^  5ftfT «TT, f«Pf5T ^  ^  «rr,

iTft ^  ^  a m
% H ST ^ r ,  4  j  ftir ipflf ?r
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^  TW 3rf«R? ^  ^  I ^

%, ^  % f?!^, aftr ^
5PH sTTT ^  «ir«^n îT*r

3TT^ ’Tlferf SfTf

^  % fffSTST «rrr ?lr arrr ^  fjf*rR

?T5r I lf  =5(T  ̂ ^ 
3rk arnr ^  ^  a r^  ?rT? ^  ?r>5r 
M-, ^  5TTHT 5irnTT SRTre « p r ^  

^  »Tif 3TT  ̂ ? vm ftT
% *rr ?Tft % ^  if  q f 5Tt w r

am r an^
5?TT5m ^  ITT t r r a m  ^

^  frPr q f q f ?T?f
^  sm  ^  ^  ftrff 5T ^  ?r̂ , ark 
^  aniwr # nfT ^  % ? F ^
# ^  ^  SR5T arw fR- 
% T̂>r ^  ^ ’TT I iJTT arrr
%  5TO M l f J T  f  I ^5T ^  %  ^T«FS r
»t’ apT̂ rr ^  fft Ir^friT ft ^  #
■̂‘ ?r«T5FTr f  ’Rrnnft̂ r MY =̂ ?3ff ^  
wK. ?[?r %y ^  t<?( i

% ?mT frr«r aft jfeR? ^  ¥ t jj?^ 
% jf  ark ^  % ?TRRr ^
3rr>?y «PT̂  % ^rf amr
??Wr % ?r«r r̂' 5, ^  #' h> ^  
WSJ ^  % ?t »rt f  15^7 jpsf ^   ̂>rr?f 

f*r wtjflr ^  nK ’+rii'O’ f f ,

T̂ ©tfT ar*k ^  ^  Tt
=̂5n" Jf? %?r, >T' ^  ^rw r % 

T̂«Tf5T̂ ??r i  arT3r?r̂  fsp?fr
^  ? ?>Tr̂  f^ r^  sT  ̂%irr artr 
3Ptr?r>T?̂  g% 5nw % fe^rr i
arrr^ «ft ^

% ITT «n#5R arrr t t  ^
436 P.S.D.

«T|TSTT 5RW 5 ark 3TT# arPT ^  
f>T ^  I ^ o  (Tifo
'sti ar̂ t̂̂ fTiX VT %

^  fT*frs *ii<irl f ^  TT ^  arr^
^  dl«ttr ?*TT MÎ WI PRTT I
<Tkf?«r% w fko tTo fto

^ o  !|fV ar?!^ ^ 3To ĴT'jff ^  f ^
farr : *pr?ifk

fw^i T̂Tf ^

=^tf^ I %Ppfr ^m»r'k # ?%•
ft?flrr I w =?rr^

ftr HKd^q #f5r«rR % a rr^7  tttt̂  ^  

?rp? r̂rf«Tf«3 4T5yT TT^ 
am  !T̂ 5r ^  ^ >rrT?T % armt

5  I arrr ^  v n n fk  tk

r̂»î  IJTT I irf sr?  ̂ arrr % 
f t r  % 3TTT ^  ^  t  f r  »rnT«Rnr

«n: i  I

?>n̂  ^  3Trr<>pr % #
grrĝ rfiRî TT 'P̂ ’TT, »r̂  ^
^ f ? T ? 2- % ?r 5fmr A'
•TOtTT ^ ̂iTcTT ̂  ft> ^  ^ar, ̂
a r r^ ¥ # « rr l^ r t 1 ^r?^ ^rtf
t f l * I f ^ » T«F iV d s fr  ’ TT^Wr 5T^ «ft I 

% fsr??
^  TT’ T f , ^ » f r  *T»TO TT5T «PT ST^ST

» T ^  ® S T  *r T T  I ^ * T

ftr ^  3T»̂  ®pr ?rrr?^
r̂ sTff I # 5?r ffTff

T , f  ?T ^  ^  5T ^
I  V R ifk  ark arwr ^
ar”k  iPr7 3rrJT fft lifV ^  ir*^
TT ?Fr^'k % r̂»ft 'rsf *riw 1

Tkffurfif ^  «Pt ffrnr?rrfw
an t̂WT n>̂HI f'K.'d < 3rT»ft
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[  «fr 5T»lf ]

f  I

#  ffl%?ST ^ 7 ^  f%  3TTT

m f im fT T T m "  ; f r m r  n  an# ?  i 

^  %  a m  ftra- > r m  ^
«T ^  ^  5T?r

8n r  sn r ^  <r ft? fsRT ' t t  s ttt
^  ^  a m r  T t * r

ftPT f»T  ̂ 3 r^5 ^ ?T ^  3ri^5ftfr
v r  ?rrT f ^  ^ tj»tt i

arrr VT3f fw*ii ^  an'T 
f  f%  ftiflf t -  

»m fT ?ft ! T ^  t .  ^  ?tilf
5  I 3 P K  ? r ^  3TN# aiPT %

fjfN nr ftrft ?ft TTTTrT 
<1̂  TT tr^  !T

v r o m ’  «P> « P T  |>  «TT i r f ^

?[̂ T̂  frt iffr ?5PT Cf *«’T. ^  
5» n ^  a rtr  3 tn %  1̂  ^rrar 1 ^  jt?
T̂ sTT 5T^ =arr^ ^  1 »r f tc ?

f v  T 'f ^  5R T ^W ^ TT 5TT 
^55TO?rr«r t t  snnT
% 3ITTW 5Ft ??̂ rpTT f% ?!T ^  3T̂  ^  
«TT ? R 2 T  f̂TT ;R tT rf5 T  3TTJT, 

IT? ^ 5 !i T  f t ’w rr i ,  p "  ̂  ^
^  «pt ^ i r n : fr^ f 5 1 ’ t ' a r r r
^  f%r ^  otN ^TTfT % tffT

arPRT » rf^ 1r € t, s r r ^  ^rt, ? r f^  
»rhr »rt^ arra" 5  1 f?: ’snr? % 

w W f  *ift' IT? a rra r^  ?  3 T « j w i  ^
R>^l ?  a ftr  3fT^ sfl'ft

I ir?  >TTT?r ^  'S P T^  ^  ^  I
3T’ ^ » T T

#  a m  TO ^  «I?V afiT
«T ^  3n*pT, a r k  %«tw 
aftr ^  ^

^  a ftr  %  f?qT a r k  IT? ^  

?rR ^  fifT 5T?

JT? ft T ^ T  ^  f w  I

#  5 ® ? n  I  %  w  fsr% ?ft 3fV %  ?TTT 

«T ^  Ir ^ iT iik  ?r<*wT a m  

W v fl'^ srR ft?  ? ?PIJT VRifhCVtWTVIT 
JTT ^  f f ) ’ a n ' 'T r ( t r h r  ^ r ,  a r « r ^

% Sl^ d O  W  >̂T*T ^

^  ^ S J T  5 1 ^  «rr I f«l!T * f  T?tTT ^  
f t r  5 f t  i T R ? r  %  * n ^

f ,  ^  ^  t '  I ^
^  < r e T w  a r t t

?  I -dn^) >T ^  a iTO ’ ?ft ^  <1 1̂ 
I aPTT T T ^ R T  ipt F̂TT^no

?ft iflTTcr ^  arVr i f t  ^

^  ^  «f I ^  ?nT*T ^ r n r

I r ,  ?i>*rr»^r ^  jt t  ^  « f t  * ^ 3 f f
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»ft 9T>i% I;' 'TT 9HK ^sppr 

<T 5ft wf ^  a rk  ^  5^

"T^ I

Shri Frank Anthony (Nominated— 
Anglo-Indians); 1 rise to suuport 
the demand for an enquiry on behalf 
of the Independent Parliam entary 
Group. I am going to attem pt in a 
few minutes to take this whole dis­
cussion out of the plane of emotion 
and of legal technicalities into which 
it  has got entangled.

We are not, in supporting this 
motion, concerned with the politics 
of the late Dr. Mookerjee. P er­
sonally, I did not agree with his 
politics. I am going to make an 
appeal to every Member of the House. 
I  am one of thaHpi most senior 
Members of the House and have 
always been extremely jealous of the 
rights and privileges of the Members 
of this House and I am going to ask 
every Member to look at this issue 
purely from the point of view of par­
liamentary convention. We are still 
in a formative stage so far as our 
parliamentary democracy is concern­
ed and it should be the concern of all 
of us, particularly the senior Members 
of the House, to see that we build up 
salutary conventions. I am going to 
ask a question to the Congress 
members. Are you going to look at 
this from the point of view of a 
necessary, salutary parliamentary 
convention, or are you going to be 
regimented by youf Congress Party 
whip into throwing conventions over­
board? I am looking at it purely 
from the point of view of parlia­
mentary conventions to which we 
must subscribe. If this House is 
going to progress along healthy par­
liamentary lines, we must necessarily 
cut across all party lines, we must 
cut across all party affiliations. I say 
that this demand for an enquiry, 
even if it had been made by the most 
humble, the most obscure, the most

junior Member of this House, I would 
have supported it, irrespective of his 
party af!iliations.

Sir, although I am a lawyer, I am 
not going to enter into a legal con­
troversy with the Home Minister. I 
say that this controversy, this argu­
ment and counter-argument, is a most 
unseemly thing. It is going to lead 
us nowhere. These charges and 
counter-charges ‘will neither prove 
nor disprove anything. I say: don’t 
look at it from a party or partisan 
point of view. I say this that I have 
been one of those who have always 
been bitterly opposed to preventive 
detention without trial, but even 
then, I am not going into the merits 
or demerits as to whether Dr. 
Mookerjee was rightly or wrongly 
detained. Let us assume for the 
sake of argument—I am not conceding 
the Government case—that he was 
rightly detained under some Public 
Safety Act. May I say in passing 
tha t I regard all these Acts—^Public 
Safety Act which is the twin of the 
Preventive Detention Act and I 
would call them so with the utmost 
of repugnance—offend the very 
principles of democracy. I say that 
detention without trial in times of 
peace does offend the fundamental 
principles of democratic jurispru­
dence. You should have framed an 
elementary rule for this democratic 
convention, and that is the conven­
tion I am asking every Congressman 
to look at so far as every Member of 
Parliament is concerned. Govern­
ment arrogates to itself extraordi­
nary powers. When any Govern­
ment acts either under a Public 
Safety Act or under a preventive 
detention Act, it supersedes the ordi­
nary law of the land. In the words 
of Mr. Chatterjee, you are acting 
under a lawless law when you choose 
to supersede the ordinary law of the 
land and when you arrogate to your­
self extraordinary powers in order to 
deprive one of our citizens of his 
liberty. Therefore. I say, whether 
you recognise it or not, you also 
assume the added responsibility of



42424241 Detention and 18 SEPTEMBER 1953 death of Dr, S. P.
Mookerjee 

to remove the suspicions. The 
charges are there—the gravest per 
haps—and in your own interest, I ask 
you “Why should you shirk an 
enquiry?'’ The charges are essen­
tially in respect of the medical treat­
ment which Dr. Mookerjee had 
received. Why should you shirk a 
medical enquiry? I admit medical 
men may look at the question from 
a narrow professional point of view, 
but you have the Supreme Court here. 
Do you doubt the integrity or im- 
pw tiality of the Chief Justice of the 
Supreme Court? Why then are you 
afraid of an enquiry? You say in 
such emphatic terms that all these 
charges are u tter poppycock, but the 
country, in terms of millions of 
people, except the Congress Party, Is 
making these charges. Your own 
leaders, some of your most respected 
and learned leaders like Tandonji and 
Dr. B. C. Roy had asked for an  
enquiry. Your own reputed leadera 
are asking for it, and here in the face 
of all these demands from your own 
party people, from every other party  
and from millions of people, why are  
you shirking an enquiry? What is 
the difficulty? Any judge of the 
Supreme Court could do the enquiry. 
You are not in doubt about the inte­
grity or impartiality of the Judges of 
the Supreme Court or any High Court, 
and so if your case is that all 
these charges are baseless, there is 
not the slightest suspicion that the 
Judge will completely exonerate you 
and the people also will be shown 
that their charges were baseless.

taking extraordinary care of the 
health and life of every person whom 
you detain without trial. That is 
the principle I want every Member 
of the House to consider. You have 
handed over to your Government 
extraordinary, ruthless powers—I say 
tha t only under a lawless law a 
Government has this extraordinary 
power and it chooses to deprive a 
man of* his liberty. Dr. Mookerjee 
was not charged for any offence under 
any law. He was just detained 
without trial. Since you have arro­
gated to yourself this extraordinary 
power, you have the responsibility, 
which you cannot escape, of taking 
extraordinary care of his health and 
his life, and that is the convention I 
am sure every Member of this House 
will subscribe to. 1 do not wish to 
place the Members of Parliam ent 
above the ordinary citizens of the 
land. Here we are a House, which 
must guard jealously the rights and 
privileges of every Member of this 
House. A Member of Parliam ent 
was preventively detained, detained 
for no alleged offence, detained under 
a lawless law, there is not the 
slightest suspicion—the suspicion may 
be absolutely baseless—that his death 
had occuiTed under extraordinary 
circumstances, and every one of us, 
irrespective of party affiliation, must 
insist that the Government institute 
an enquiry into the circumstances 
under which he died. The allega­
tion has not come only from the Hindu 
Mahasabha party. If it had come 
from that party  only, I would not 
hesitate to brush it aside saying that 
they were merely trying to make a 
political capital out of this.

These charges have come from 
almost all parties except perhaps the 
Congress and they have asked for an 
inquiry. Does the Home Minister 
for one moment delude himself into 
the illusion that merely because this 
discussion has been raised by Mr. 
N. C. Chatterjee, the countzy will 
regard the Government as having 
exonerated itself? Np, Sir. You owe 
a auiy to yourself. The Govern­
ment should hold an enquiry in order

Dr. JaJsoorya (Medak): The matter 
actually would not have been so c©m- 
plicated if the death had happened in 
a normal way. But what happened 
here is that it became complicated be­
cause a man died as a prisoner with­
out trial. If he had died travelling in 
a train or driving his car and smoking 
a cigarette or talking to his wife, we 
would have said that it was a sudden 
heart failure and we know hundreds 
of such cases. I know five thousand 
more cases than Dr. Katju. I would 
not have risen to speak but for the fact 
that this is really an important point.
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while I do concede that Dr. K atju 
knows all about law; even with the 
utmost chanty I am not in a position 
to concede that he knows anything 
about medicine and yet he hap passed 
opinion as to how a man may die of 
heart-attack, what is the nature of 
heart disease and wliat will be his con­
dition on the first day of the disease, 
on the second day, on the third day 
and so on. Ignorant people or ignor­
ant doctors think they know every­
thing about the heart. That is the im­
portant point. We are saying that 
death is inevitable. In many cases it 
is normal, but to die in detention with­
out trial in a place which is not near 
and not even under our jurisdiction, is 
the unfortunate part of i t  It is neither 
inevitable nor normal. Whenever a 
person dies in Europe, it is the law 
there that post mortem must be done.
Here, iinfoitunately, there is no law 
that post mortem  should be done. Un­
fortunately also cremation prevents ex­
humation. Here, in India, if one 
says that so and so was given some 
poison and was murdered, we can 
prove nothing, because there is no post 
mortem. We can prove neither ‘for' 
nor ‘anainst’, because after the body 
is cremated, the ashes can*t prove any­
thing. Whether or not he died of poi­
soning can only be said on the law of 
probabilities.

The experience of medical men is 
that the morr we see, the more we 
know how little we know about the 
behaviour of the heart. As you know, 
the heart is controlled by various fac­
tors like strains, emotions etc. and it 
is not only the heart that is sick, but 
the entire person that is sick. There is 
no doubt about the fact that Dr;
Mookerjee was a sick man when he 
wont to Kashmir. I do not doubt that 
for one nunule. I do not doubt also 
that he died of natural causes. But 
we h^ve a right to know that to this 
man who was a prisoner of society 
everythiii..^ was done that could save 
him. This Is important. But my hon. 
friend won’t concede this point This 
is where my objection arises, that 
every one has a right, and especially
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the cry of a mother’s anguished heart 
hfis a right to know whether every­
thing was done to save him—much 
more than all of us put together. I t 
is not {0 placate a political party. I t 
is not to placate you and me. We 
have to tell her, the mother, that in 
the name of the people of India we 
have made enauiries. we are convinced 
that he died of natural causes. I care 
two hoots as to who is convinced or not 
convinced. Our, demand is that the 
people of Indi? whom we represent 
must be convinced that he died of na­
tural causes. This is all I ask.

Now. about the questiori of law. I 
am not able to understand one or two 
points. I confess my ignorance. I 
therefore ask you for information, and 
that is on v’hat day did the law—the 
law relating to the permit system in 
India with regard to going to Kashmir 
—when did it lapse? Did Dr. Syama 
Prasad Mookerjee go with the know-

* ledge, though not the consent, of the 
Government of India to the border? Is 
it a fact or not that the police of the 
Punjab Government not only allowed 
him to go but also aided and abetted 
him? On what day exactly did the 
Kashmir Government make the law 
or the permit system with regard to 
entry into Kashmir? What precise 
tinje was it? When did you make an 
announcement or publish any notifica­
tion? Did you tell Dr. Syama Prasad 
Alookrcjee “You can go, we have now 
abolished our law, but they have made 
laws”? This is the only point.

I am not interested in that question 
as a doctor, but I believe it is our 
e«L'entia! and human right, our inalien- 

ri;iht to know how a man dies. 
Wliy? Because, it is possible, th o u ^  
undesirable, that a man can die nor- 
mj^lly in detention, but it is not only 
the c îse that a man dies normally in 
prison, there are to my knowledge six 
cases where people who were prison­
ers of society in detention without trial 
did not come out alive. Not only that, 
there is no evidence to show where
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their bodies ore. For instance I will 
just refresh the memory of my hon. 
friend who unfortunately was only the 
su-?cessor to tho crimes of bis prede- 
•cessors. I v.lll fAve you the names: 
Rangachari» Raju Reddi. Padma Reddi, 
Hamachandra Reddi. Sitnrama Reddi 
and ,»'anardhanachari. What happen­
ed to them? Where are the corpses, 
■̂ vhere are the bodies? I think one 
official sitting up there should know 
-all about it. any my hon. friend should 
know. I fully confess that he is only 
a successor to things that have hap­
pened previously. But I can ask him 
to enquire about it. tell the people of 
india what happened about it. That 
does nat apply here. What does apply 
is the fact that it is the right and duty 
•of relatives, whose people have been 
taken in detention as prisoners of so­
ciety, that the"’ shall be assured that 
these prisoners have been given pro- 
lection in everv form. No doctor is 
infallible. We all make mistakes. And 
to think that in a third class place like 
Kashmir there will be a heart expert 
wnen in Delhi there are none and in 
Calcutta and Bombay and London and 
Berlin people are “done*’ in spite of 
medical aid—is to think too much! 
I feel that there have been instances 
and evidence of carelessness., I am 
pointing only to that. I have seen my 
own father die of the same heart 
failure though he was attended on by 
five devoted men of the medical pro­
fession. And my brother died. In 
both cases the approach to the line of 
treatment was wrong. Are wr going 
to hold those doctors responsible and 
say they deliberately killed their 
patients? Thc> did their test. But 
in this case where suspicions have 
arisen I think the best thing you can 
do is to clear those suspicions by ask­
ing for a medical enquiry into the cir­
cumstances that have attended his 
Death. The political issue does not in­
terest me.
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Shri Meghnad Saha (Calcutta—North- 
West): I support wholeheartedly the 
demand of rny hon, friend Mi. N. C. 
Chdtteriee for a full enquiry into the 
circumstances which led to the death 
of Dr, Syama Prasad Mookerjee. in de­
tention. I have heard the arguments 
on both sides. I was very sorry to find 
that my friends on the opposite side 
have opposed this very simple demand 
for an enquiry. I am also sorry that 
in spite of private opinion which I 
have heard from thousands of Con­
gressmen about the death of Dr. Syama 
Prasad Mookerjee, none of them have 
risen to speak their mind on this mat­
ter and have left it to Dr. Katju, the 
Home P^inister.

I come from the city of Calcutta 
from which Di. Mookerjee was also 
elected. Dr. Mookerjee was born and  
brought up in Calcutta. He is w ell 
known almost to everybody in Cal­
cutta, and during the last one month 
when I was in Calcutta, hundreds of 
men who visited me have requested 
me that there should be -x public en­
quiry into the circumstances of Dr. 
Mookerjee’s death. I do not know 
why Dr. Katju brought all hi.*; legal 
acumen just to argue against this sim­
ple thing. I am sorry that in spite of 
the great csieem in which I hold Dr. 
Katju, the Home Minister, hip legal 
argum ent5 have not convinced m e in  
the least. It was a very simple thing. 
Millions of his countrymen believe, 
v/heiher rightly or wrongly 1 canno t 
say, that Dr. Mookerjee’s death took 
place under very suspicious circum­
stances. Here we listened to the argu­
ments of Mr. Chatterjee, the counter­
arguments of Di. Katju and arguments 
on all sides. It would have been a 
very simple thing to have a public en­
quiry, and to place all the circum­
stances about hir. death before the pub­
lic. I think if the Government ac­
cepted this motion, it would have rais­
ed them in the estimation of oui coun­
trymen. But they have not done so.
I was particularly surprised when Dr. 
Katju wanted to fix the re.sponsibility 
on my hon. friend Mr. Trlvedi, Mr. 
Trivedi is not a medical man. and  
everybody knows that w hen a m an is
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very ill, his friends flock to his bed 
side just to offer him comfort and just 
to satisfy their own curiosity. He said 
it  was Mr. Trivedi who hastened Dr. 
Mockerjee’s death by being at his bed­
side. This appeared to bo a very 
queer argument.

Shri U. M. Trivedi; Ridiculous.
Shri Meghnad Saha; I think it will 

not convince anybody in the world— 
this kind of crude arguments—......

Sbrimati Sucheta Kr^palani: Very
crude.

Shri Meghnad Saha:...... to shift the
responsibility to somebody else, one 
of his friends. He knows him well. 
This will not satisfy anybody.

Dr. Mookeriee was a very eminent 
man. I have known him since his 
iDOyhood. I had worked wiih him. He 
Was one of ;he most lovahle men I 
knew. As a matter of fact, when he 
announced here that he was going to 
Kashmir, I went to him and I remon- 
.strated with him that he should not go 
to Kashmir. I was not acquainted 
with the legal aspects of Ihe thing. I 
was not a sympathiser with the parti­
cular cause v/hich was responsible for 
the making up of his mind to go to 
Kashnur. I simply told him; '*You 
are placing yourself in the oower of 
your enemies, and no sensible man 
-should place himself in the power of 
his enemies**. He said he was not go­
ing to be detained in Kashmir. He 
said; *1 am going to be detained in 
India, because the Indian Government 
will prevent mv entry into Kashmir,” 
He was never under the impression 
that he would be allowed by the In­
dian Government to go into Kashmir.

I think the legal aspects have been 
‘dealt with very fully bv Mr. Chat- 
terjee, I need not enter into them, 
and I think it must have been a great 
surprise to Dr. Mookcrjee when he 
was allowed, helped and aVetted by 
the agents of the Indian Gevemment 
to enter Ka.shmir. And I think all 
i^hese movement? must have ct me from 
a master mind, and one ĉ »n see who 
that master m»nd is.

Anyhow, 1 do not want to treat this 
House to a long discourse. 1 think
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the coimtry demands and mi]lionB of 
his countr.YTnen demand that there 
should be a full and open enquiry into 
the circumstances of the death of Dr. 
Syama Prasad Mookerjee, and I would 
urge the other side—the Government 
—to accept this motion of Mr. Chat- 
terjee and once for all allay the d ^ b ts  
which are, whether rightly or wrong­
ly, poisoning the minds of millions of 
people in this country against the Gov- 
ernnient cf Xndie as well as the Gov­
ernment of Kashmir.

Shri Joacbim A:va (Kanara): This
is one cf the gravest and saddest occa­
sions in this House when we are ask­
ed to mourn the death of th “ greatest 
orator of the Indian Parliament, a 
titan, a giant who lived amongst men. 
Who does not know that quite many of 
us have shed tears on the death of 
Dr. Mookerjee? Though we funda­
mentally opposed his policies—policies 
that perhaps cut at the root of nation­
alism—we had respect for his perso­
nality. Sir, I am glad you have given 
the fullest chance for the Opposition 
to ventilate their feelings, sentiments 
and grievances, and Government need 
be congratulated for boldly and 
squarely facing this charge and trying 
to rebut it.

What is the use of saddling the 
Bakshi Government with the sins of 
Sheikh Abdullah’s Government? The 
Bakshi Government today is in saddle, 
and they have a serious responsibility 
to discharge. They have a life and 
death struggle in Kashmir. The 
enemy is within the door, and it is not 
possible perhaps when the enemy is 
at the gates to have any agitation 
which will ailect their course of na­
tional existence there. (Interruption) 
Only yesterday. Sir, my hon. friend 
Mr. Fotedar from Kashmir said that 
they had a charge against this Gov­
ernment, that the Government of 
India never interfered in any shape 
or form in Kashmir; and here now the 
Opposition states that our Government 
should interfere. Revolutionary chang­
es have occurred since the death of 
Dr. Mookerjee both in our national life 
and international life. The Kashnnir
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issue is a very grave issue in the fore- 
Iront of world politics today. Abdul­
lah’s Government has been liquidated.
Bakshi's Government has come in. As 
I said it would be wrong and improper 
and unjust to saddle the Bakshi Gov- 
ewwnent with the wrongs of Sheikh 
Abdullah’s Government, and things 
with which the India Government had 
nothing to do. The misdemeanours or 
the sins of Abdullah cannot be visited 
upon the shoulders or upon the head 
of his successor who is waging a great 
battle of keeping Kashmir going and 
to decide Anally which side to choose.

As I said, we are deeply mourning 
Dr. Mookerjee’s death. Unhappy ia 
the lot of Bengal that they lost their 
titans and great heroes one by one.
Netaji Subhas Chandra Bose had to 
walk miles and miles when he beat a 
retreat from Rangoon to Singapore.
The British gave him a hunt and he 
had to walk miles and miles into the 
hills and lay down his life finally. So 
also the case of Sarat Chandra Bose 
to which hon. the Home Minister re­
ferred. C. R. Das also died like that.
He died when he was down in the 
heat of the campaign in the South. I 
remember asking Shrimati Basanti 
Devi as to how he died. She said:
"The food there was very hot, and he 
passed away soon after he returned 
from his tour in the South’". Years 
after I remember telling Shrimati 
Sarat Bose. “Be careful about your 
husband. The food may go away”, 
and she said, I remember, “I go with 
my husband wherever he goes.** He 
went to Europe, and the hon. Minister 
has graphically described the circum­
stances in which beloved Sarat Babu 
died.

The Government of Kashmir as at 
present constituted should not be bur­
dened with this enquiry. The Govern­
ment of India is not responsible in the 
sense.that Mr. Chatterjee has charged 
it. I have great sympathy with Mr.
Chatterjee’s demand. As I said, I re­
main a fervent admirer of Dr. Moo­
kerjee, Long after the din and bustle 
of political Ufe will have been forgot­
ten, long after we shall have gone
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away from this Parliament of India, 
all of us will remember Dr. Syama 
Prasad and his name will always flit 
across the gallery of our minds,

X

Today, neither the Government of 
India, nor the Government of Kashmir 
can be saddled with an enquiry. We 
do not know what even the constitu­
tional position is. The Government of 
India can only take over the adminis­
tration through the President if the 
State is in disorder. Only Communi­
cations, Defence and Foreign Affairs 
are in our hands. We do not know 
what powers we possess even over the 
Government of Kashmir. Quietly and 
departmentally people may be punish­
ed, departmentally the doctors respon­
sible may be punished.

I may recall the great episode when,
I think, from the very seat of Dr. 
Syama Prasad, the late Pandit Motilal 
Nehru fought nnd heatedly discussed, 
the rights of political prisoners for 
whom the late Jatindranath Das gave 
up his life—fighting, so that political 
prisoners may not die and suffer in the 
prison yards of the land. Thereafter 
the classification of political prisoners 
in Indian jails started with some kind 
of amenities being granted to them. 
Most of us. Sir, have received the bene­
fits of the supreme sacrifice of the life 
of Jatindra Nath Das through hunger- 
strike. I do not think that the son of 
the late Pandit Motilal Nehru, that 
great patrician of Indian politics, 
would be a party to the physical liqui­
dation or murder of Dr. Syama Pra­
sad Mookerjee either by thought ̂  
word or deed, especially when he has 
been always magnanimous towards op­
ponents, especially when he has for­
gotten all the harsh words that have 
been said against him. Hence I beg 
of my friends, with whom we have 
much in common, but with whom we 
have also some difTerences, that they 
shall not press for an enquiry. We shall 
keep the memory of Dr. Syama Pra- 
5iad Mookcrjco ever treasured in our 
minds, so that whenever any visitor, 
any patriotic visitor goes to Kashmir, 
he will remember: Here died a patriot
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fighting for his own principles—though 
we did not agree with them—with none 
of his own nearest and dearest ones 
with him.
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Shri Joachim Alva: We shall do our 
very best to minimise these troubles. 
As I said, let this be the first and the 
last episode of its kind.

Sir, I want to say one word about 
political prisoners before I sit down. 
There is a moral in the death of Dr. 
Svama Prasad Mookerjee. Let it be 
the first and the last of its kind in our 
history. As I said, our patriots have 
watered the tree of our national life 
and freedom and fought at great sac­
rifice of their lives. This Congress 
nurtured in the fight for freedom shall 
not be frittered away by being made 
liable to the charge of liquidating poli­
tical prisoners or of not meting out 
good and decent treatment to them. 
We have seen what kind of fights we 
have waged in prison yards. We have 
seen what fights we have waged in­
side prisons as well as outside—pri­
soners who refused to put down their 
hands on their toes in indignity, pri­
soners who refused food for 15 days, 
prisoners who were subjected to lathi 
charges and so on. All these sacrifices 
are not in vain. We shall not allow 
■any one of our political prisoners to 
imdergo this torture. Thank God. the 
Jail Manual has been very drastically 
revised, especially in the State of 
Bombay where even criminal or habi­
tual prisoners are treated in a decent 
manner, allowed many facilities and if 
they behave well, are even allowed to 
go back and see their wives and chil­
dren. These are concessions which 
were once drawn out by hungry, fight­
ing, resolute patriots in the course of 
the national struggle. We shall hand 
them over to our successors. In this 
democratic State, we must ever keep 
these principles and practices green.

It is said of th« ‘Iron Curtain’ coun­
tries that they liquidated their oppo­
nents. It is said equally of democratic 
America that if anyone of their offi­
cials even possess a book on Commun­
ism. he shall be hounded out of office.

Sbri Gidwani (Thana): How are our 
Socialist friends being looked upon? 
Read the statement of Mr. Ashok 
Mehta.

Once again I reiterate that I deep­
ly mourn the death of Dr. Mookerjee. 
Whenever we look at his seat, we miss 
his great personality. He was a man, 
a towering personality, the greatest 
orator, as I said, of the Indian Parlia­
ment,' though we basically differed 
from his policy. Especially in this 
great debate, I want to kjiow whether 
it was open to any political party— 
any minority party—to wage a raging 
and tearing campaign after a great 
democratic party has been set in office 
by the votes of the majority of our peo­
ple. Was it open to any party to wage 
a raging and tearing campaign in the 
streets of Delhi, reiterating the condi­
tions of 1948 when we lost the Father 
of the Nation? These activities. Sir, 
we shall not support, but resolutely 
oppose. We shall not sympathise with 
these aims and objectives, however 
noble they may be considered to be 
by the Opposition. We have lost a 
great and prominent figure in the 
death of Dr. Mookerjee; we deeply re­
gret his departure from our m idst 
But his name shall live for ever in 
our minds as a great personality.

Shri R. K. Chaudhury: Before ^he
hon. Minister in charge of this debate 
rt'plies, I would like to ask him a 
few questions.

Dr. Katju rose—

Shri R. K. Chaudhury: I should like 
the lion. Minister of Home Affairs to 
stay.

I want to know certain facts. First 
of all, it was ffiven out in the Press 
by Sheikh Abdullah himself that he 
was prepared to release Dr, Syama 
Prasad Mookerjee, sometime—a long 
time rather—before, his death, but in 
the absence of the Prime Minister 
from India such a release could not 
be effected. I was always wandering 
why it was necessary for Sheikh 
Abdullah to consult the Prime Minis­
ter of India about the release of Dr.
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Syama Prasad Mookerjee. It certain­
ly is not the concern, I believe, of the 
Government of India to #?et him ar­
rested by the Kashmir Government.

If that is so, Sir, I do not under- 
st(5ind why Sheiikh Abdullah Jcould 

have the temerity to state that he 
was not released because the Prime 
Minister of India was not here. I 
would like to know from th« hon. 
Home Minister if during the absence 
of the hon. Prime Minister he was 
consulted by Sheikh Abdullah about 
it and, if so, whether he also told 
Sheikh Abdullah that no order could 
be passed in the matter because of 
the absence of the Prime Minister.

Then, Sir, I also want to know this, 
if it is possible to know; normally 
when a person enters upon a land 
when his entry is banned, all steps 
are taken by that Government who 
bans the entry to send him, to ex­
tern him from that country. Why, 
Sir, in this case, why in the very first 
instance when Dr, S. P. Mookerjee 
broke the law and entered Kashmir, 
why no steps were taken to extern him 
from that country. Why was he de- 
iuXned there? I should also like to 
know, to clear the position of the Gov­
ernment of India and to assure its 
fair name, whether as a matter of 
fact—if it is not a high secret—any 
consultation was held with the Gov­
ernment of India regarding the deten­
tion and arrest of Dr. S. P. Mookerjee. 
If these two points are cleared, I think 
there will be nothing so far as I know 
for which the Government of India 
should be held responsible for the 
subsequent events. First of all, no­
thing was done .by the Government of 
India to persuade the Government of 
Kashmir to arrest and detain him and 
then the statement which Sheikh 
Abdullah made that his release was 
dependent on the wishes of the Govern­
ment of India, if these two points are 
cleared, I submit that there la nothing 
for which we can say anything against 
the Government ot India for what has 
happened subsequently.

We should all be rather thankful 
to Mr. Chatterjee for his having 
brought this motion before the House 
and to Mr. Trivedi for his stating the 
facts as' hq knew. I think Mr. Trivedi 
has don3 a great public duty by tell­
ing this House what he really knows. 
Whatever we had heard in the Press 
may have been mere gossip but what 
he has stated in this House cannot, 
be gossip. Now, I think. Sir, with my 
limited knowledge of law, that if the 
statement which he had made before 
the House today was made before any 
magistrate, he would have been satis­
fied of a prima facie case though not 
under section 302. nor under section 
304, first part, at any rate under the 
second part of 304 or 304A of the 
Indian Penal Code. Sir,-who is going 
to have cognisance over this caseT
The Indian Court is  not competent to 
try this case because the occurrence 
took place in another land and the 
accused is also in another land. Then 
the question is. who Is going to take 
.the trouble of having a case against 
the authorities in Kashmir.

I am always confused about the  
position of Kashmir. I consider that 
Kashmir is neither flsh, nor flesh nor 
good red herring.

Acharya Kripalani:
hhat

Nor even dal

Shri R. K. Chaudhury: In every
legislation which we pass in this House 
We say that this law shall not be appli­
cable to Kashmir. What is the remedyT 
1 take it for granted that whatever 
has been said in this House by the 
supporters or by the followers of 
Dr. S. P. Mookerjee is auite correct; 
but what is the remedy? Kashmir is 
a part of India all right and if we 
have stated in certain legislation that 
it would not be applicable to Kashmir 
it is all right. Then the position is 
that in ordinary matters Kashmir 
is in India. In the matter of legisla­
tion unle«!s you state that this law 
will not be applicable to Kashmir, 
that law becomes applicable to Kash­
mir. I think that is the position. Be­
cause you say that certain laws are



Then, Sir» I folt very much pained 
when some Members like my friend, 
Mr. Alva Rave us a catalogue of the 
names of the persons who died oV 
heart failure as if the death o£ Dr. 
Mookerjce should be treated in the 
same way.
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not applicable to Kashmir, therefore, 
all other laws which are not mention­
ed, become applicable to Kashmir; in 
all other matters Kashmir is a part 
of India and the Prime Minister of 
India has the fullest control over 
Kashmir.

Dr. Syama Prasad Mookerjee said 
that he does not understand how there 
can be two Prime Ministers in India, 
one of Kashmir and the other of India. 
It is very diflftcult for us to under­
stand what ‘ recommendations this 
House can make to the Government. 
What can they do? Can they hold an 
UiQuiry themselves? Or because 
Kashmir is independent of them in 
certain matters, can they merely re­
quest the Government of Kashmir to 
hold an inquiry in the absence of the 

, people of Government of India? What 
can really be done? Is it only that 
we can express resentment?

Dr. Syama Prasad Mookerjee may 
have died of heart failure or may not 
have died of heart trouble; he may 
have an accelerated heart failure but 
We should not be heartless in conduct­
ing this debate. We should not make 
light-hearted remarks so ^ar as this 
debate is concerned. All that the 
Government can do in this matter is, 
if the Kashmir is a part of India the 
Prime Minisetr may request the 
Kashmir authorities to f̂ o into the 
question of his death and hold an 
inquiry. If Kashmir is not part of 
India, then the Government of India 
can take action under the international 
law for Kashmir having? done some­
thing that deprived us of the life of 
a valuable citizen and for that reason 
we can take such steos as are prescrib­
ed by law. But the fact remains that 
this should’ be the attitude of the 
Government of India.

We regret, the Government of India 
regrets as much as anybody else the 
premature death of Dr. Mookerjee. 

\  The ^Government of Ind'ia regrets 
olao the acts of so-called indifference 
of the Kashmir Government, at any 
rate the medical authorities of Kash­
mir. That must be our attitude.

Shri Joachim Alva: I did not say 
that. All that I said was the great 
leaders of Bengal died under tragic 
circumstances.

Shri R. K. Chaudhury: The great 
man of Bengal died of heart failure,, 
but did anybody ask the Government 
or anybody to enquire about the rea­
son how Sarat Chandra Bose died
or how other persons who died of 
heart failure? Nabody questioned. - 
This is a very intolerable thing and 
should not have been indulged in by 
Members of Mr. Alva's position. We 
are sorry not so much for the death 
of a particular individual—Mahatma 
Gandhi died just at a time when the 
country needed him most. We were 
sorry for him, we did not make any 
complaint but the death under those 
circumstances was certainly deplor­
able.

Dr. Syama Prasad Mookerjee was
the Leader of the Opposition. For
that reason the Prime Minister never
showed any disrespect to him. The 
Prime Minister always held him in 
esteem and afTection. He never said 
anything undesirable regarding Dr. 
Syamn Prasad Mookerjee because he 
was the Leader of the Opposition, We 
forget party affiliations and say **Here 
is a valuable Member of the Parlia­
ment, one of the leading Members of 
the Parliament, who has contri­
buted a great deal in the cause of this 
country, who had built ud the edu­
cation system at least in Bengal and 
Assam; we deplore his death”.

1 P.M.
Certain things have come to light 

about his death. The public is entitled 
to know, even if we have no control 
over Kashmir, the exact position. 
Let us know this, Sir. If Dr. Mooker- 
jeel had himself protested against a. 
certain injection—it is reported in
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I Shri R. K. Chaudhury ] 
the newspapres that some injection 
was given to him and that Dr. Mooker^ 
jee had said that he was prevented 
from having this injection by Calcutta 
doctors—and in spite of his having 

told the doctors so, as is reported 
in the papers, if this injection was 
given, we must And out weather it is 
a fact or it is not a fact. The hon. 
Home Minister should welcome this 
opportunity of explaining things 
which he knows and given an 
assurance to the House that, on the 
things which he does not know him­
self and on the things which we 
are not in a position to contradict, he 
will make some enquiries and apprise 
the House. That is the only position 
which we can take up.

Dr. Katju; I would like to say at 
the outset that my esteemed friend, 
Mrs. Kripalani, has done me great 
injustice, I am not here to argue any 
case and unfortunately my being a 
lawyer is always feeing brought up 
against me about five times in the 
week. I do not know why. Now, I 
did not bring an argumentative frame 
of mind on this question at all. Here 
Is this book which has been circulat­
ed. Passages were read by hon. Mr. 
Chatterjee and I ventured to read 
other passages from this book. That 
is all. Now. some question have been 
put. Just now, Mr. R. K. Chaudhury 
said, well, here are these three ques­
tions for you;—one: why was not Dr. 
Mookerjcf. externed. Now, I do not 
exactly know whether there is any 
power in that ordinance or not. But 
I would ask you to consider that Dr. 
Mookerjee—we all acknowledge—was 
not an ordinary citizen. He was a 
lonelier of n great party. He was one 
of the leaders of this Parliament and 
he had been saying over and over 
again that he had made uo his mind to 
go to Jammu. I am not now going 
into th^ matter excent to say that 
an externrnent, the Jammu and 
Kashmir Government may have 
thought, would be a very idle per- 
formnnce.

Acharya Kripalanl; Why?
Dr. Katju: Please wait and listen.

You extern a man. What does extern- 
ment mean? You put him across the 
Indiai^ border. He walks across again. 
Y ou/arrest him. It goes on like a 
game. Dr. Mookerjee—you all know 
him for years and I also knew him. 
Prof. Mookerjee said tha t he had 
known Dr. Mookerjee's family for 
three generations. Dr. Mookerjee was 
a man of determination. When the 
Inspector-Genef-al of Police told him, 
“Please do not go. Here is an order,’* 
Dr, Mookerjee said: “No, no. I am 
going” Then two minutes later they 
brought out that order and he was 
arrested.

My friend Mr. Chaudhury asked 
why not extern him? Don’t you think 
it would have been an idle game, like 
a children’s game?

Acharya Kripalani: Did
Government consult you?

not the

Dr. Katju: I taj^e objection to that. 
Mr. Kripalani, I know that you are 
a journalist You are always putting 
forward, different points of view. I 
am putting forward an argument. I 
am saying, Sir, here is the question, 
and here is the answer. The question 
is, why was he not externed? 1 say 
that »an externment, in the circum­
stances, would have been a completely 
idle performance. That is my answer. 
You may contradict it or accept it.

The second question was....

Shri R. K. Chaudhury: Was that
the idea of the Kashmir Government?

Dr. Katju: You put that question,
and I have got to answer. You consi- 
sider it. Does it appeal to you or 
does it not appeal to you? They 
never consulted me. My hon. friend 
has just now said that he does not 
know whether Kashmir is a flsh fowl 
or a little red herring. You a.9k the 
Kashmir people. They would sav* that 
Kashmir is under article 370 of the 
Constitution. We are not going to 
enter into a constitutional discussion 
about the position of Kashmir.
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The second Question was this. In 
a statement issued, I believe after tne 
death of Dr. Mookerjee, Sheikh Abdul­
lah expressed his great sorrow. He 
said it was a great misfortune and 
he himself was opnsidering the Q U ^ 
lion of releasing Dr. Mookerjee aiCter 
the return of the Prime Minister from 
England. The inference is sought to 
the drawn that the Prime Minister was 
a party to his detention. It is a 
matter of common knowledge that at 
that time discussion was going on 
about calling off of the agitation by 
the Praja Parishad, I do not know 
in what terms and under what circum­
stances.

[ M r .  D e p u ty - S p e a k e r  in  the C h a ir]

Now. Sardar Hukam Singh had dis­
cussed this matter with Sheikh 
Abdullah many times and he had dis­
cussed it with Dr. Mookerjee also. 
The understanding was that Sardar 
Hukam Singh was to go again to dis­
cuss the matter with Dr. Mookerjee 
and, as he himself told us, on the 
21st of June he was informed at 
Pahalgam that Dr. Mdokerjee had 
been taken ill and therefore this 
meeting might be postponed. I had not 
consulted Sheikh Abdullah about that, 
so far as that message was concerned. 
But at that time we were trying—I 
was anxious myself—to settle this 
P raja Parishad Agitation. No body 
liked it. If the Praja Parishad agita­
tion had been called off, Dr. Mooker­
jee would not have ^been jextemed; 
he would have been an honoured 
guest in Jammu and in Kashmir. I am 
only speculating—I have not discussed 
this matter with him— Sheikh Abdul­
lah might well have thought that this 
wider question as to whether the 
Praja Parishad agitation was to be 
called off or not to be called off would 
require consideration here and on this 
settlement would depend the question 
as to whether Dr. Mookerjee should 
go to Jammu and meet the people 
there. That is why the Prime Minis­
ter's name has come; otherwise* so 
far as we are concerned we had no­
thing to do with Dr. Mbokerjee’s deten­
tion.

486 P.S.D.

The third quetion that was speciflcai* 
ly put was, was there any prior consui- 
tatifin between the Jammu and Kash­
m ir Government and us? None what­
soever.

I have given specific answers to 
specific questions.

Then my hon. friend Mrs. Kripalani 
read out extracts from a letter—I do 
not know address to whom—probably 
to Mr. Chatterjee, by Bakshi Ghulam 
Mohammad. Now conditions In Kash­
mir have changed considerably. Sheikh 
Abdullah is now in detention and I 
have not been in touch with him about 
this matter at all. .but don’t please 

forget to do him justice. As soon as 
he heard from no less a person than 
Dr. B. C. Roy, one of the most re­
nowned physicians of India, that there 
was this point, that point and so on 
and that some deficiency in treatment 
was also indicated. Sheikh Abdullah 
wrote to him “Will vou kindly come 
and make an enquiry?” That was 
within a few days of the death .if 
Dr. Mookerjee. Therefore, to do 
justice to the Jammu and Kashmir 
Government and also to Sheikh Abdul­
lah, there has never been any anxiety 
on their part to avoid an enquiry in­
to the specific points raised by Dr. 
Jaisoorya as to the nature of the 
treatment. We know that lawyers 
differ in their opinion and doctors 
also differ in their opinion. The whole 
question was whether the medical 
treatment given to Dr. Mookerjee was 
satisfactory^ or not. Sheikh Abdullah 
asKed Dr. Roy to do this inquiry. Un­
fortunately We were subjected to all 
sorts of misfortunes in this matter.
It so happened that Dr. Mookerjee 
died on the 23rd June, then there was 
this demand for an enquiry and Dr. 
Roy had himself to leave for treat­
ment and for other personal purposes 
for Europe, but Dr. Roy. when he 
left for Europe, said “I shall have to 
come, but I shall not come alone, T 
shall bring three or four companions 
with me.” Sheikh Abdullah said 
‘'Quite all right”. Then Dr. Roy said 
that some papers should be preserved* 
--•prefciiptlons and other papers. Now* ^
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all that was done. Dr. Roy went to 
Europe. Do you know what happen­
ed in Calcutta now? Dr. Roy had to 
cut short his visit and, I think, he 
returned by the end of June. He was 
himself immersed in his own affairs.
I do not want to make an inaccurate 
statement, but my recollection is 
“̂ a t  Dr, Roŷ  himself published a 
statement in the press that having 
seen the subsequent documents and 
having been informed of the details 
of the treatment, he had changed his 
opinion.

Shrimati Sucheta Kripalani; It was
not a Press statement, but a private 
letter and in that letter there was 
another phrase to the effect that the 
enquiry was not necessary ‘at this 
stage*.

Dr. Katju: If I am wrong, I with­
draw that. Whatever it is, I do not 
'vant a controversy and give an in- 
nccurcJle impression to my hon. 
friends here.

Shri N. C. Chatierjee: May I cor-
rect one statement. Sir? The state­
ment actually is that “I have never 
said that there should be no enquiry.
On the other hand in spite of that 
letter, I do maintain there is room 
for enquiry and the enquiry should 
be done.*’

Dr. Katju; By all means, let it be 
00. My point is that Dr. Roy made a 
demand for an enquiry and Sheikh 
Abdullah acceded to i t  and there 
was correspondence between Dr. Roy 
and Sheikh Abdullah on this point.
When Dr. Roy returned for Europe, 
ke was immersed in his own troubles 
and then the troubles broke out in 
Brinagar. Shrimati Sucheta Kripalani 
read out portions of Bakshl Ghulam 
Mohammed’s letter and Bakshl 
Ghulam Mohammed says that he would 
like to have an enouiry into this. It 
was not my intention to allocate 
blame in this matter on anybody’s 
part. As it is, the whole dispute has 
BOW centered round as to what hap­
pened on those last three* four or five 
teys. Sardar Hukam SlBgh mw Dr.

Mookerjee on the 15th, my hon. friend 
Shri Trivedi saw him on the 18th, 
and Dr. Mookerjee fell lU on the 20th. 
Hon. Members will remember that on 
the 21st June, a day before his death, 
there a nem  item Issued from 
Srinagar which it so happened was 
published in the newspapers on the 
very day on which in the morning 
edition the news of his death was 
published. The news item just consist­
ed of two lines and dated the 21st, 
stating that Dr. , Mookerjee was re­
ported to be suffering from an attack 
of dry pleurisy but his condition 
was satisfactory or something like 
that. That was in the newspapers and 
it came out in the morning news on 
the 23rd and by that very date, there 
was the news of his death splashed 
all over the land. Therefore, we shall 
confine ourselves only to what hap­
pened during these two or three days 
just before his death. Why should I? 
It is a matter for Bakshi Ghulam 
Mohammed.

I do not know, there has been a 
long discussion about the Preventive 
Detention Act, That is all very 
familiar discussion. (An hon. Mem’- 
her: To you also). You know the
pros and cons of the Preventive De­
tention Act. That is not relevant 
here.

Shri Raghavachari (Penukonda): 
Why was this big elephant drawn into 
the kedddh enclosure by the Gov­
ernment of India? That is the whole 
point.

Dr. Katju: Sir, I cannot under
stand what he is saying.

Mir- DeputyHSpeaker; He is refer* 
ring to Dr. Syama Prasad Mookerjee 
as having been entrapped into some 
enclosure in Kashmir.

The Minister of Law (Shri Biswas);
The suggestion is that he was push­
ed into Kashmir. (Interruption)

MU Deputsr-Spealier: Order, order.
I am not going to allow any more 
interruptions. Let us not part in 
that mood. I have altowed sufficient
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time. Hon. Members look niffldeBt
time. Ultimately he is winding up. 
There is no good going on asking 
questions.

Dr. Katju: You ought not to
joke twith a serious subject like 

this.

Sfari S. S. More: He is not.

Dr. KatJu: You are joking.

Mri beimty-Speaker; He may ad­
dress the Chair.

Dr. Katju: I am sorry, Sir.

Acharya Krlipajlanii; Sir, it is a 
simple question. Why did not the 
Government of India aixest Dr. 
Syama Prasad Mookerjee when he 
was violating their law?

Shri K. D. Malavi^a: Why should
we have?

MJr. Deputy-Speaken* It has been
put four times.

Shrimati Sucheta Kripalani: We
have not got an answer.

Dr. Katju; Sir, I speak with all
the profoundest respect to the
memory of Dr. Mookerjee. ,l do not 
want to say one word about him.
When the case was going on he was
most careful not to break the law 
in India. He never attended any 
meeting. He went to Punjab. There, 
meeting *was «lk)rt)idden. He never 
addressed any meeting. The press 
people are available. Then he gave 
out his views. He broke the law 
only in Kashmir. He said “I am 
going to Kashmir to break the law”.

Shri Frank Anthony: Why did
you not arrest him under the Preven­
tive Detention Act?

Shri K. D. MiOaTiya: It is a silly
question. (Interruption)

Mr. Depaty-Speaker Order, order. 
What i« the good of these interrup* 
tions

Shri Meghnad Saha: It is verjr
important. (Interruption)

Mr. Depaty-Speaker: Order, order.
The hon. Member will resume hia 
seat. I will have to ask him not to 
rise hereafter.

Dr. Katja: Sir. I beg to say in
conclusion that many things Jiave 
been s4 id about millions of people 

and about there being demands by 
millions. I am also a person...

Shri Meghnad Saha: Crocodile
tears.

Dr. Katju: I know that great pas­
sions have been roused. But I have 
invincible belief in the common- 
sense and the sobriety of the ordi­
nary man in our country, and in 
spite of the confusion that is sought 
to be created on the f^oor of the 
House the people are satisfied that 
everything was done by Goverti- 
ment.

Some Hon. Members: No.

Mr. Deputy-Spcaker: So far as the
resolution on unemployment is con­
cerned it will stand over to the 
next session.

Shrimati Renu Chakravarity (Basir- 
hat): Sir, it is very important ques­
tion and I would therefore request 
you to allot one or two days for the 
discussion of the resolution on un­
employment in the next session. The 
suibject is so import^ant...

Mr, Depnty-Speaker: They can dis­
cuss it with the Government. So la r 
as non-official measures are concern­
ed I have brought them before the 
House every week. If the Govern* 
raent agirees I have no objection.

The House then adjourned sine die*




